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7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001

The Secretary
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange,
Kamdhenu Complex, opp: Sahjanand College
Panjaraple Ahmedabad-380015

The Secretary
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Dear Sir,

SUB: Submission ofAnnual Report for the Financial Year 2012-13

We are pleased to inform you that as per Clause 31 and 32 of l-isting Agreement, we are
enclosing herewith the six (6J copies ofAnnual Report of our compan), fbr the Financial
Year 2012"13 along with the Cash Flow Statement for the same pcriod.

You are therefore requested to kindly update the Exchange website with the same anti
treat the above as oul Compliance.

The above is for your informalion and record.

Thanking You,
Yours Faithfully,

For, Terai Tea Company Limited

Roshan Dave

(Company Secretar,
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Terai 
.Tea _Co. Ltd., flagship compan"v of .,Terai Group,, is pronoting andpatronizing "Amit Agarwala Foundation,,, a public Charirable Trust which isalreadl. running a'yatri Niwas,, and a,,Recreatio".r C"-i."", both at siliguri.The Foundation was established in the rne,o.y of.Sri A,*t-ag;^"ut" ,,lro left for hishoa vcnly a hode about scve n ) ea r< Lack.

Adding another feather to its cap, ,,Amit Agarwala School fbr Blinds,, $,a-c
:"iyqyt:_d on 27th January 2O1B at GiriJ p..f.Xotf.ut"a- rry His Exce encl.Sri NI. K. Narayanan, Hon,ble Governor of lVest Bengai irrln" pr""n.." ot.a hugegathering of luminaries. Terai Group is 

"orllrl,ltteJ ti*, a.as iis ,,Co.po.at" So"inlResponsibilitl-" by promoting such chu.itubl" ur.rd .n"i.l;.;j;"1
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Notice
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE s hereby given that the 4oth Annlal Generat
lvleet ng of the members of ,,TERAI TEA COMPANY
LIMITED" wil be he d on Monday, the 3oth September,
2013 at 10 00 A. t\,4. at ts Reg stered Office at jO
Government Place (East), 1st Ftoor Kotkata-700069 to
transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1) To consider and adopt theAudtted Balance Sheet as
0n 31st [,4arch, 2013 and the Proft and LossAccount
of the Conrpany for the year ended on that date
nc udirg notes and Reports ofBoard ofDirectors and

Auditors thereon

2) To appoint a Direcior tn place of l\lrs. Shashikaa
AgaMa a who retrres by rotation but be ng e igrble
offers herselffor re elect on.

3)

4)

To appo nta Directorin placeof[,4r. Rajesh Singhan]a,
who retires byrotation but being e igrble offers himself
for re-electon

To appointAuditors and fx their remunerat on and in
ihis regard to cons derand fthoughtfit to pass, wth
orwithoui mod fication(s) the following reso uiron as
an Ordinary Reso Lrtron

'RESLOVED THAT I\,4/S. pK Shah & Co . Chartered
Accountarts. Siiguri (Reg straiion no 30B1SOE) be
and are hereby appointed asAud torof the Company,
to ho d office from the conclusion of thrs Annual
Genera [,4eet]ng unt I the conc usion of ihe next
Annual General [,4eeting of the Company on such
remuneration as shall be fxed by the Board of
D rectors

SPECiAL BUSINESS:

5) Toconsiderand, ifthoughtfit topasswithorwthout
modiiicailon(s) the following Tesolutions as a special
resolution

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 198,269 310 311 ScheduleX andother
applcable provisions jf any of the Companies Act
1956, as amended or re-enacted from time to time
the Company hereby approves the re appo ntment
ofl\4rAlit KumarAgarv/aia, asthe lvlanaging D rector
ofthe Company for a period ofthree years w ih effect
ltom A1 04 2A12 to 31 03 2015 on the terms ancl
conditions set oLrt n the Explanatory Statement
annexed to the Notice conveninq thisAnnua General
Meetrng includrng the remuneration to be pa d in the
eveni of loss or nadequacy of proft in any financial
year w th iberly to ihe Board of Directors to a ter or
vary the terms and conditions ofthe said appointment
n such manner as may be dec decl by the Board of
Directors / Rerr!nerat on Committee

'RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
giv ng effect to this Reso ution th-. Board of Directors
or any Commrttee thereof be and are hereby
authorized to do al such acts, deeds. matters and
ihings as they may in thetr absolute discretion deem
necessary expedient usua and proper n the best
interest of the Company'

By order of the Board
ForTerai Tea Company Limited

sd/-
Reoistered Office: Roshan Dave
1o,Govern ment Place (East) Campany Secretary
Ko kata - 700 069
Dated : 14th dayofAugust 2013

NOTES:

1) A member entitled to attend and vote attheAnnual
General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of h imself/herself a nd th6
proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxies in orderto be elfective must be received
at the Company,s Registered Office not less than
48 hours before the meeting.

2) The Equ ty Share Transfer Reg sters ofthe Cornpairy
wil renrarn closed frorn September 261h. 2013 to
September 30th 2013(both days inctus ve) forthe
purpose ofAnnual General A,4eet nq.

2 @T TeraiTea Company Limited

4)

3) l\4embers desirous of getting any nformation as
regarding accounts are requested to iniimate the
company al least ten days before the meehng to
enable the management to keep the rnformation
requlred read ly avai able at the meetinq.

The Company's shares are enlsted with NSDL and
CDSL'o- oarrctpat,or nto E,eal.ortc Deoostron
Svsler ooerared b) tl e1 'ts slares a.e cohp-lso. y
'o be t.aded nF.ecr,cEo.1 a-d tre se. .r Ly Dea.<
Code lslN INE 390D1011

5) Mernbers are requested to notfy mmed ately any
change of the r address, if any to ihe Company in

Ulllltwflalt#,ti, ,lit t] ,ultllUl' r !\tttiili tt 
"
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case shares are held in phys calfornlorto the Dp's.
where the accourt is ma ntained, if held n demat

As per provisions ofthe CompaniesAct, l956facillty
for making nominations is avatlable for mernbers in
respect ofihe shares he d bythem. Nomination Forms
can be obtained from the Company's Registrar and
TransferAgent.

Pursuant to Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement with
lhe Stock Exchange the particulars of the directors
seeking appo ntmenureappoinlment at the meeting
are annexed separately.

8) Members are requested to update the r e-mail
address to tera tea@gmail com or mdpl@cal.vsnl.nei. in
to do so to support the "creen lnitiat ve,, in the
Corporate Governance.

Il,4embers are requested to quote folo numbers in al
their correspondences.

Byorderofthe Board
For TeraiTea Company Limited

sd/
Reoistered Office: Roshan Dave
'lo.Government Place (East) Campany Secretary
Ko kata - 700 069
Dated, 14th day ofAugust, 2013

6)

7)

9)

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION SEEKING RE.APPOINTMENT
IN THE 4OTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT)

'The comrnrttee inciude Audit Commiiiee and the Shareholders / ln vestors. g rieva nce Comrntttee.

Name of The Director Mls. Shashikala Agarwala Mr Rajesh Singhania

Date of Birth March 13 1955 December 11 1971

Expertise in specific
functionalareas Tea Marketing Frnancial [,4anagement &

Taxation matters

Qualification BA B.Com(H), FCA FCS ACt\tA

Details ofshare held
in the Company

18,98 800 800

Chairman/ Member of the
Committees of the Board of
other Companies in which
she / he is a Directori

NIL Nit

List of Companies in which
outside Directorships held

Sayedabad Tea Co Ltd
Terai lspat & Trading Ltd
Tera lnfrastructLfes Ltd
Teral Resorls & Country C ub pvt Ltd
Kanchannvew Resoris Pvt. Ltd
Terai Disti leries Ltd.
Jaldacca Tea Plantat ons pvt Lid
TeraiJute Pvt Ltd.
Amit Paridhan Pvt. Ltd.
East lnd an Produce Ltd

Sayedabad Tea Co Lld
Terai Overseas Ltd
Terai lnfrastructures Ltd.
The Khar bariTea Co Ltd.
feral lspat & Tradtng Ltd
Abh jit Tea Co. Pvt Ltd
Kanchannview Resorts pvt Ltd.
Terai Dooars Tea Co. Pvt Ltd.
Amit Ores Pvt Ltd.
Terai Resorls & Country Club pvt Ltd.
M dnighi Developer Pvt. Ltd

AnhualReport-2012-13 .'@) 
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Explanatory Statement as required under
Item No.5.

In ihe shareholders meetng held on 30th Septenrber
2009 tle sna-er-o de s had re apoo'nted I\,4r A I K_rar
AgaIwala a9 tre lvlanag,.g D recror.or a oe.,od ol 5 yeajS
effective frorn 1st December 2009 to 3oth November
20'a "_e ter rre of 1rs aopot--r1ent e,pt.es ot J0th
Nove.nber 20r4

Keep ng in view the vast experience of [,4r Aj t Kumar
Aqa v(ala rl-e Board,r its neer,ng ned on 2-d da, o.
\o/enoe- 20 '2 s-b.ecl to rl,e approvalo.tl-e nenbe-s
of the Company ir the Annual General lvleetino has
dec'deo ro .e aopot-r h |l as Vdnag nq D rec-o- i, rre
Co_ oa-l 'o. o ',1r er pe oo o, rLree Vears \I e r
0 l.0a 20 l2 to 3 0l 20 l5 o- -he.enL|lera!;, a1d te.ns
and cond t ors as sei out here n Accord ngly this
resolution is being proposed for the approval of the

TERMS & CONDITIONS :

A Salary Notexceeding a200,OOO/- per month wth
the authority granted to the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as ,the 

Board,' which terms
sha I nc udea Commitiee ofDirectors)to determine
the sa ary and grant increases from t me to tlme
wrth n the aforesaid limit

Commission: Notexceeding 0.50% ofnetproft n
an accounti|gyearas maybedecided bVthe Board
from t me to ttme

sec- 173 ofthe CompaniesAct, 1956.
' Co11oan/ Tailra,neo.a,s .1/t orl\,e.s,</. \tr-ereDlo,te s. ano Fa, at,esioe1ce,,,. Co, pan/ s

cor t"out'or to Pro!ioe.t L Jro and S-o-or _
A_1ua_ton T- td.t ! prlTenlorGratJry'a.dot-e,
retai benefit; (v) Encashment of Leave and (vr)Long
seryice award. lvi) Key lvlan lnsurance premium
The Board is authorrzed to fix actua remLrneration
and revise rt from time to ttrre within the aforesaid
ceil ngs

D. The total remuneration nclucling a iowances ancl
perquisrts sha i not exceed the irntts specifed n
Schedule Xlil to the companles Aci. 1956

E MinimumRemuneration Notwithsiandino
anyth ng to the contraryherein where in anyflnancia"
/ear O-. 1g r-e . -r.e-cy ot tf. ter Ure ot rFe
appolntees the company has no profts or ts profits
,re -aoeoJa.e tneconoany I pr\ rerLJ-e.a-:or
'O Iq. dDoO,rtees ov /a,/ O' sala./ o.rqL "rtesa'lowa-c.S a to 'TCe1- /e,,o- r1-.aU;r aS !oec,lteo
above.

OTHER TERNIS :

l) The Managing Director shalt not so long as he
functions as such, becomes interested orotherwse
concerned, direct y or through his wrf-o and / or nrrnor
cf rote- r a-y se tr g agenc/ o! .1e co-o.ny n_JLL e w'tloJI ar/ o-0. ;ppror. . -ne corrai

) The Managing Director may be terminated by the
C o_loan/ or oy lne Vd-agng D recror brg,r g.61
less Ll-ar t-ree ro-t, s p,.o. nolce i- 4,:'r--o

The [,4anaging Drrector shall be entifled to
reimbursement of allactua expenses. inc uding on
Frtela n.rFrlalo tave',ing ncJ-eo r t te :or .se
of lhe Company s bus ness

itD

iv) The terms and cond tions of !pporntment and,eT .re a'ion q ver le,ein, a, oe akerao ard,ar,eo
"o- u1 e lo tne o, lre Boa.o of D re-tors o.tne
Companyas t may. atris dtscretion. deemed fit so
as not to exceed the Im]t specifed in schedule Xlll
o rheConoc",esAcr .946,,ic,-d-gar,,s-ar_rory
.od,'crto- or .e-elact.re-r tneleor lo.ILe rire

being in force). or any aTnerdment macle thereto
frorn time to t me

The overall remuneraton of the D rector ncluding
oe-qL'sitesare 4ot 

^,t1ntn.o,e.a,,nLspeatf ed-noer
sec['or 198 269 309 ].0 J tr r- -, to r9 sc-ed-,e XlI
or tne companies Act I956
\o_. o'_1e D rec-o.s e,(eo- I\,4r A.rt \u.rar Aga 

^alaano ll,4' s Si-a<L,ta,a Aga-wa a r.e ol IV- A r 
^_rnarAoa'sd a ore Lo-ae -eo o- ,tte.esreo ,. ;1. saio

resoiLrtion

c Allowance & perquisites ln acldition to sa ary and
corn ss oI 1e ],r't I oe entrlreo ro al.onance
perqursites, benefits facilites and amenities
(col ective y allowances and perquisites..l such as
furn shed restd e ntia I accom modatio n orhouse rent
alowance tn leu thereof, maintenance of such
acco.rTodator. Cas. F ecrrr.tty & poie. Wa-er,
FL'nrSt rgS. tl_tll! A o,Ia-ce, I\ledrca qemo_-
rsement Foreign Travel, Leave Trave Asststance /
Allowances, [,4embership fees for c]ubs.
Hosprtal zat on and Accident insurance, Secuity at
res d ence and any other allowance and
perquisites" as per the po icy / rules ofthe company
i_fo cea d or a< mavDeappro,eo byt.e Board
f'on t ne _o .'re otovtoeo rFal aoq,eq;te va Le of
such alowances & perquisites shal rot exceed t
12 acs oe- a,ll "n A, o!./ances & pe.qJ,stt6s 

ro
be \a ued as pe. lre t--one.a) eJ,.s .vle.e\er
app icable and at actualcost ofthe cornpany in other
cases

ln additon to the above. he wt also be entlecj to
the foilowing benefts as per poltcykules of the
co-pa_/ i- fo Le o. a< na/ oe apD o.,eo br -re
Board from tme to iime

I
4 -rei|r TeraiTea company Limited

Dlfflhhil":,lMlll!:i, i.tti) )11 tlllJ' tttt \titlii.t.



lhformation in terms of Schedule Xlil of the companies Act, 1956 for seeking approval of the shareholders as
given here below :

{l) General lnformation :II Nahrre of lnducirv

2. Date of Commencement of

Commercial productron

3. ln case of new companies, expected
Date ofcommencement of activities

As per project approval by financial
lnst iutions appearing in prospectus

4. F nancial Peformance based on

Given indicators

: Cu tivation ofTea and l\,4anufacturing ofTea.

: The Company is in man ufactu ring operation s since the year 1 973

NotApplicable

As perAudited F nancial Results for the year ended

Revenue from operations (Net)

Profit before lnterest, Deprecation &Tax

lnierest (Net)

Profit before D-.preciation & Tax (PBDT)

Profit before Tax

Profit after Tax (PAT)

5 Export perfoamance and
1er fore g- elc^at ge ea.-irg

6. Foreign lnvestmenls or colaborators if any :

( ll) lnformation about the Apoointee :

(a) Mr. Ajit KumarAgarwalal

1. Background detailsi

31.03.2013

8,310.62

578.19

302.57

275.62

75.85

43.32

NotApp icab e

NotApp icable

31.43.2012

6 705.48

675 72

423 64

252 08

60 62

40 4A

(< ln Lacs)

31 .03 2411

4,030.82

530 25

297.28

232 98

30 79

15 39

lvh Ajit Kumar Agarwala is an Arts Graduate and has been honoured with a honorary degree of
Doctor of Philosophy in business management by the Burkes Universiry, U.K. He swith thecompany
s nce 1987. He looks afteTthe overall management ofthe Company and is the IVlanaging D rector
He s I\/anaging Trustee ofAmitAgaMa a Foundation, a Public Chatitable Trust having multifarious
charrtab e activ ties l\rr Agarwa a is Treasurer of West Bengal Pradesh Congress Com mittee" He
is an executive member of All lndia lvlarwar Federation and Executive Committee member of Cll.
North Bengal Chapter. He is also a Board rnember of Tea Board of lndia

2. Past remuneralion:

Sa ary (lncluding Perquisites)

Total

31.03.2013

24.OO

31 .43 2A12

14.00

14n0

(< ln Lacs)

31.03 2011

600
24.00 600

Recognition orAwards:
l\,4r. Ajit KumarAgaMala has been granted lnternat onal B! siness Exce lence"Award by lnternational
Business Council National Trade Excelence Award" was gven to hirf for outstanding service,
ach evements and contr bution. He has also been conferred with gjven Rajlv Gandh Sadbhavana,
Award.

Job Profile and suitability:
Ii/r. Ajrt K!marAgarwala the I\,4anaging Director s entrusted wth the powerand authortyto nanage
the day to day affairs ofthe company on a day to day basis subject to super ntendence, d rect on and
contro ofthe Board of Directors. He is an experienced planter and has extensive knowedge oftea
ndustry. His experience at various levels has he ped him to successfuly manage the affairs of the
Company for last several years.

AnnualReport-2012-13



5. RemunerationProposed:
The proposed rernuneration rs w thrn the rrmit sei out in schedure xIr of the companies Act, 1956

6 comparative remuneration profiie with respect to industry size of the company, profire of the positior
and pelson.

The remuneratton to I\,4r. Ajit KumarAgarwala is pure y based on merit and expeience
T Pecuniary reratiohship direcfly or indirecfly with the company rerationship with the manageria

personnel:

l\fu Ajit KurrarAgarwara has no pecunrary rerationshipwth the company other than his remuneration asa
[,4anaging D rectot He is re ated to [,4rs Shashikala Agalwala with n tile rneaning ofsection 6ofCompanies
Act. 1956.

( lll) Other lnformation :

1. Reason of Loss or lnadequate profits:

Tea lndustry rs a seasona ndustryanditistotarydependentontheweatherforcrop,andauctonfor
prices There has been su bsiantia I increase rn labo u r wages i gard e n operatin g expen ses statuto ry lia bilities,
and generalinfatron have considerably eroded profit margins However, rnaintaining adequateind steady
profitab lity on a regular bas s may take ttme.

The profitabi ity over the last 5 years is given below

llar
2008-09

2009 10

2A1011

2011 12

2012-13

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for lmprovement :

The Company s focusing on qualty and this has attracted premrum in the market Effort are made to cut
downcostand increaseyleld atthegardens. There has been substantial cap tal expenditure in the land and
factoTies to ncrease the efficiency, reduct on rn cost. rationarzat on of rabour force etc. The company has
also siarted trading in agricultura goods and has achieved a substantia chunk of busrness dur ng th;year
under revlew The Company rs hopefu to ach eve very good business in the forthcoming year.

3. Expected increase in produetivity and protits in measurable terms:
The Com pa ny expects to obtain good per hectre yield in tsTea Estate and a so better reaLsat on ofthe iea
prices due io errphasis on the qualty of tea to be manufactured.

(lV) Disclosures i

'1. lnformation to shareholders on the remuneration package of manageriat personnel:
The Notice of the Annual Generai l!'leeting contains details of the Remuneration packaoe / Revision tn ihe
E^p a-atory srareTelt.

2. Disclosure under Corporate Governance in the Board of Oirector,s Report:
The remuneration package payable to Mr Ajt KumarAga&ala, alongwth the relevant detais has been
mentroned in the reports ofthe Corporate Gevernance attached io the Directors Report There is no sitting
fees stock opton etc. The period ofappontmeniand remuneraton as per approva ofAnnuar cenerar
I\4eet ng resolutton The appointmeni may be termtnated by giving athree months notce. MrAlrtKumar
AgaMa a is holding 25.76,800 shares of the Company

Reqistered Office :

l0,Government Place (East)
Kolkata - 700 069
Dated 14th day oiA!g!st, 2013

6 ffi Terailea Company Limited

Profit after Tax (T in Lacs)
40.65

52 90

44.48

43 32

By order of the Board
For Terai Tea Company Limited

sdt
Roshan Dave

Campany Secretary

'Uffil.hlfrlluwtlt, idl :]t 1llllllt 'ttt 'ttttl]llii,



Director's Report
04-" @t",.,t"t*.,<,,
The Board of Directors of your Company pleasure in presenting therr 40th Annua Report together w th Aud ted Ba ance
Sheei and statement of Profit & loss for the year ended 31st March. 2013

(< ln lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

8,372.25 6,755 85

Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation. Flnancial Cost and Tax 591.54 686 77

Less:Fnancla Cost 315.92 434.69

Profii / (Loss) Before Depreciation 275.62 252.08

Less : Depreciation '199.77 r91 46

Profit / (Loss) Beiore Taxation 75.85 60 62

Less : Taxation 32_53 2014

ProiitAfter Taxation 43_32 40 48

Add : / Less' Balance Brought FMard 1,126.46 1 085 98

Surp us/ (Deficit) Carried to Balance Sheet 1,169.78 1126.46

Bas c and D Ilted Earn ng Per Share 0.63 0.59

OPERATIONS:

During the financial year. the company produced 51.78
lacs kgs Of tea as compared to 52.01 acskgs oftea n

the prev ous yeat The dec ine n product on can mainly
be attributed to ncons stentsupply ofgreen leaves from
the smal growers The unfavourable weather condrt on
has a so adverse y affected the yield of ihe tea estate
The in tial dry spe I has impacted the product v ty of the
tea bet of the regon to a great extent Despite the
slowdown rn producion, your Company's turnover has
grown tol8372 25lacs as aga nst{6755 85lacs in the
prev ous year The Company has achreved better profit
before tax to the tune of< 75 85 acs as against{60 62
lacs n the current year The improvement in botiom line
is ma nly due to Company's emphasis to produce qua ity
tea wh ch has y e ded better price realzation.The
Company's profitwould have been much h gherbutwith
the steep rise in the pr ces of Green leaves and other
inpuls v z Feri I ser and Pesticide Oi & Fuel the profit
marg n rema ned contpressed

The new plantation work in app 125 acres undertaken
t\r'r'o years back n Bagdogra Tea Estate has begun to

yie d frultful resu ts and your tea estate s al set to reap
the beneftof newplantationinthecurrentfinanca year.

Dur ng the year Company has witnessed about 38%
lncrease ln turnover from trad ng business as its
continuous endeavor in th s ine has established sirong
footage n the commodity market rnainly of agricu tural
produce viz JLrte, pulses etc

Companys Bought leaf unit namey Tea Factory Unit'
has been successfu ly sh fted to Kharibari tea be t rn the
previous year The unit has started functoning n the
month of Novembefl2and srunnng nfu lswng ln the
Current financla year

Your Company is g ad to nform you that in the matter
aga nstacquisiton ofland by Defence Department n ihe
year 1962, Sole Arbitrator has a ready been appo nted
by the Centra Governmeni and the Arb tration
proceed ngs are already in progress Your Company is
expecting an award n the current financial year itself

As regards lo other itgations forcompensation against
indian Air Force and Alrport Author ty of lndia, al efforts
are be ng made to exped te the proceed ngs ln the
respectve Couds of Law and your d rectors are hopeful
of posrtive outcome n the Current financ a year

AnnualReport-2012-13 ffi"2



TEA MARKET SCENARIO

lndia is the largest black tea producer rn the wortd total
tea production n 2012 was reduced to at 1j 12 (rev sed)n'lor . g conoa.edto lr'6. revtsed nir,o- r g in,r0..

F,s reo.esents aro--o aOoo o. Lne torar grooar tea
production.

Tl'e Iea ra4e_ rh,cl las witnesseo ouoyal-/ for rf,epas' Lwo /ea.5 s loor -9 Oeo.essFo ir ttse c--rent
year.The output in the current year is on the higher side
and wrth the stagnant domestic dernand and dectn-a n
export, the prices of tea remains subdLred and lhef c'ease in tea proouc.io- f,on Kerya ald S- -an.at_aS
further added to the woes on the p ce front

FUTURE OPERATION
'l ne Co'r.oat/ ras naoe aoeora-e arratqcnells ,,-th
Sna I grolerS D, TaL ng sLr.ciert ao\an(es ioT
connnleo a,ld .ons ste.- s-pD y o! g, ee1 leaves I I arltte u--ts o_ rl.e Conoany dL. rg tne Cu-e tr Et,arc al
/ea lf s i ill-elp rne co.r oa1/ to acT e\ e rl-a opr n-pl
output from al the unrtE

-he Cono, rv Las wttlesseo t-ureaged sJDotr o! greerlea/e! i- tls -acert / sn,rled lerar,eaFa.-o./ u-rat o
be ng encouragecl with this, the instalted capacity of the
-lit,f'o' I acs rgs of -ea o a s . ke / Io ba oo .oreo loo racs rgs p a i. tre .r|e-l \erJ Eel oy aocl,-g
adeqLare prar' ard I arntle. es 1iswitreplle t-;
to optimise its Ftxed overheads cosis

The Rea Estate Sectorhas st llnotshown any bullshness
ard ,s hd!hg a regat,ve btas voJr Cono.n/ ,s si,, t- -Le
D'ocess of nrr r1g I e S-rve) aro srLd\.ng t-e v aO, it,
'or deJe oo rg _sD-netrro 

ocated 11 ln;Fea-to.tne
c'I) o'b g,r,,Tne Co.roany sla, ve-tu,e nro tne Rea
Estale deve opTert olce -he Secro. stans st-ov\,ing so-re
stab lity and buoyancy

DIRECTORS

P-,slJa-rtoseclo-2560f rleConoa-resact .956 tyrs
Sfashi.d'a Aga.^a,a a-o Sn. BaJesF S,ngna- a
iJ.ecto.s o,,oL .o-pat y a.e tdole lo ret te oy rotat on
andbeing eligible offers ther.selves forre appointrnent
Briefparicu ars and expertise ofthese Directors and the r
d'-ec.o.sl os and corr tree rei-lbersnip ta/e baengr\el n the a-ne\ _re to t.te nonce o. Ar.J; Ge.e,al
Mee'ro n a-co.da-ce uitl r.e .eo_t.ene-t o. L.sirg
Agree.neni wth Stock Exchrnoe

Sublectto the approvalofthe shareholders in the ensLrring
A1'JarGenera I\4eet-g Tlete.rrorappo-rTelio.S,lr
\ t Kr -ar Agr.wa d as rle Vanaq . q Dtr-cro. s s
expr ng on 30th November 20.14 Constderrng hts
satisfactory performance the Board of Dlrector tn their

I 6jl! Teraitea company Limited

reeti-g -e.o on 2-d oar' or \o,enoer 20t) .eappo."leL
. has the lvanag,ng Dt,ecto,tord -l 1ne-Ietfl o,3),eat
.\ e f Sroa! ofAo-t. 20.2.Aporova o.tle,renber<rore 5at0 reappo:-t,l.er- .s a,so .o -ne renllneraron
payable to the [,4anagrng Director wil] be soLrght at the
ensLrring Annual cenera l\leeting

Allthe Drrectors have frled Form DD Awith the Company
as reori.eo L-de- lre ConDar e: \D sqra...icaL,on oiu,ec.ors- s2.4,,g,o.tnecofpa-resAc. t9"6)RLres
2003

AUDITORS

Messrc PK Shah & Co CharteredAccountants. S lg!n.
Sra.t to1 AJo rors of -ne Conoa^/ no,os of,ce -nt I tr ecolt u.,or oI the ensJrlg Arlua, Ceneral Veel ng dno
Der-g elg,ble offet rtseFSe veS.o. re appo...nelI
The Cornpany has received etters from the aud tors totheefeutrlat_Tei-rpoo,lr.re--,,Taoe rortobeuil- |rle 0.esrr b.d lT,ts ,.toe, Secflo1224 ,,,b of lTe(-oroar es Act 'ob6 ano -l-a- 1re, a.e 10. d:sqra,ired
10' reappo I t-e-- vr rL,, tne -oa- "q o. secr,o, 22o of
the sa d Act

AUDITORS' OBSERVATIONS

Tre nores ro tte Ac.oJr-s .e.e..ed Lo n l1e A-drtors
teoo't are <e,i e,D a.ato./ a1o t.e.ero.e oo -or Cdt ror
any iurther comments

COSTAUDIT

Tle ly. st-y of Co-oo.ate Alat.s Go,e,-renr o- "ota0y al 0 de, d recreo a-d,t of CoSr A4c6u-15 -611-p,nga
by lnF^cohoaly unoe, secro, 209 r,d o.ineCorpa.res
Act 1956,' re:DAcl of Dla.rar,ols D,oo,Ctot a Veatt/
basrs ln term of said order CostAudrt conducted bv the
reo.'ed r'n O' Cos_ AcrOJn-drr appo rteo ,trrn rne
approva of the l\flnistry of Corporate Affairs

FINANCE

I ll ? 
o.1-, 0r..".. oi r .e Co.r odny a.e Celrra Bail

:- l:9 a Brn( o[ rro,a a1o ye< Ba-1 orov,oilg creoit
racr t'es to tLe conDan/ --e D,.ecto,s e,p-ess -l-e.r
aoorec a. oT ro- Ir e ass sla.tce a10 co_ope.rt o- p ov oeo
bv ih-.m

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Dl '19 r.e /ea Jroe. .e, e, )o,r conpar) Tas ,o-
a^ceoted a.y oFpo< l -nde- Se.t,ol 5BA of rt e
!.ofoa t,esac' '956 r.ad,[ rl Co-oat osi^..eprarce
ol lJeposits) Rules, 1975

nfrL:Wfllu bth, ,)i tt ,ttll1ll] tttt uti)il



DIVIDEND

Consider ng the financial requirements towards the
lrund ng oftheongoing expansion plan.whichwe beleve
wi lenhance the shareholdeas value in the long term, no
dividend is recommended by the Directors of your
company for the year ended 31st ftrarch 2013.

CREDIT RATING

The Company enjoys exiernal Long Tem credit rating of
BBB ,stable from CRISIL which means sufficient safety
wrth regard to timely payment offinancialobligations

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your D rectors wou d I ke to nform members that the
audited accounts containing the financial staternents for
the year 2012-13 are in conformity w th the
requirements of the CompaniesAct and they beleve that
the financial statemenis refect fairly the form and
substance of transactions carried out dulng the year and
reasonaby present the Company s fnancialconditton
and results ol operations. The Statuiory Auditors,
P K.Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants Srliguri
(Registratron no 308150E) haveaudtedthesefinancial
statements

Based on the same your Directors further confrrm that
according to their nformation:

i in the preparation of the annual accounts.
applicable account ng standards have been
fol owed and there are no mater al departures

The accounting po icies are consistentty followed
and appled to give a true andfairvewof the
state of affa rs of the Cornpany;

properand suffctent care hasbeentaken forthe
ma ntenance of account ng records n accordance
wth the provtsons of the Compan es Act for
safeguard ng the assets of the Company

The annua accounts have been prepared on a
gorng concern bas s.

The Companys lnterna Auditors have conclucted
period cal audits to prov de reasonab e assurance that
the Company's established po icies and procedures have
been fo lowed

TheAudit Committee constrtuted by the Board meets at
reg! aT interva s to review nternal control and fnanc a
reportinq system.

INSURANCE

AdeqLrate nsurance cover has been taken forproperties
ofthecompanyinc!ding Bu dings, Planiancl N4achineres

and Stocks against frre. earthquake and other risks as
considered necessary

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WTH REGARD TO
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC.

Necessary informaton relating to conservatjon ofenergy,
tech nology absorption and foreign exchange earnrngs and
outgo as requ red to be disctosed under sect on 217(1)(e)
of the Companies Act 1956 read wrih the Companies
(D sclosure of Partculars n the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 are provided in Annexure Ato
this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The company had no emp oyee dur1ng the financial year
ended 31st March 2013 who was in receipt of
remunerat on in excess ofthe mrtspecified Lrndersection
217(2A) ofthe CompanresAct 1956 read wtth Companies
( Part culars of Emp oyees) Rules 1975

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

None ofthe D rectors ofthe Company are disqua if ed as
per the provrs on of section 274(1)(g) of the Conpanies
Act, 1956 Althe D rectors have made the necessary
disclosures as requ red by the various prov sions of the
Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

MANAGEIVENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
& REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As requ red in terms of the List ng Agreement with the
stockexchange a l\4anagemeni D scu ssio n andAnalys s
Report and a Report of Corporate Governance are
annexed form nq part of this report

CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Directors aTe pleased to repoft that your Company
has adopted and complied wth the Tera Tea Cornpany
Ltd Code of Conduct of Bus ness pr nc p es and Ethics
for the Directors and Senior Executives ofthe Company
The code has been dLry afftrmed by thent

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company cont nues to support the,,Amit Agarwala
Foundation", a Publ c Chariiab e Trust which has
constructed firstschoolfor blind in north Ko kata ie Amit
Agarwala School for Blind', to prov de the sphere of
education to b ind boys anclg rl andart,actvtesforfree
of cost to b rnd boys and girs This was naugurated by

V
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-
the Hon'ble Governor of W.B. Shri M. K. Narayanan on
27lh day ol January 20j3.

The orner Charirabre urits ia.nety ,,Amit Agarwala
Smrity Bhawan" and ,,Amit Agarwala Banga Bhawan,.
oftl^e trrsta.e also engageo in providinq socialservrces
,r oiFerenl sol_ere to the under priv,lege seclion o. the
socrety.

APPRECIATION

The Board of D recro's take this opportunity to express
mel srlcere apprectation lor the excellent sLpport ard
co-ordinatton receivedfrcm Banks, Financial lnstituttons
and Tea Board a uthorities for contin ued enthusiasm total

commitment, dedication and effods of the executives an
empioyees ofthe Company at alllevels, who contfibute
io the efftcierl ooe,atior and malagemerl ol rl-
Comoany. We are also deep,y g.atefLt fo, tne corrirue,
conirdence aTd fattn .eposed on Js by the sla,eno,ders

For or on behalfof the Board o
Telai Tea Company Limite(

sd/-
Ajit KumarAgarwala

Chainnan & Managing Directo,
Reoistered Office :

l0,Governmeni Place (East)
Kolkata - 700 069
Daied : 14th day of August, 2013

1O '61 Terai Tea company Limited
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Annexure to the Director's Report
I
ANNEXURE'A'
Information puEuant to section 217('r )(e) of the companies Act, 1956 read with the Gompanies (Discrosure ofParticularc in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, i988
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy Conseruation Measures Taken :

(i) Stove Tubes of the Coal Fired Heaters are cleaned on regular basis.
(ii) Nozzles and Fuei lnjectors are cleaned regularly.
( i) Bearings ofthe Machinesare checked and greased regu arly.
(iv) Fuel Fiters and [,4obil Filters are replaced regu arly.

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION
Trials weTe carried out on prunrng cycres growth reguraiors opiimar fertirizer use etc. The company is adopting
the general expeft advices published by TRA

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGES EARNINGS AND OUTGO
a) Sales (FOB Vatue)

b) Expendlture(Others)
: { Nil (? Ni)
. { 15.47 Lacs (l 6 43 Lacs )

PREVIOUSYEAR
31st March,2012

46,81,635

4,06,08,348

8.67

11,585.6

4,515.162
3,81,85,021

8,457.07

1,29,8s3

59,26,548

45.64

46.77,291

3 30,77 77A

7.47

22,388

4,380.86

2 84 36.739

6,491.13

1 43.901

61,59 132

42 AA

90.42

0.87

2.51

89.92

0.84

277

Fororon behalfofthe Board of
Terai Tea Company Limited

sdi-
Ajit KumarAgarwala

Chairman & Managing Director

Wth respect to Conservalion of Energy are given in Form _A as attached

Form lor Disclosure of partjculars with respect to conservation
(t) PowER & FUEL CONSUMPTTON

1, ELECTRICITY

(a) Plrchased (units KWH)
Tota Amount (<)

Rates/unrt (< / KWH)
(b) Own ceneraton (Unit KWH)

2. COAL

Quantity (Tons)

Tota Amount ({)
Average rate ({ / Tons)

3. FURNACE OIL/H.S.D.

Quantity (Ltrs)

TotatAmount ({)
Average rate (</ Ltr )

( ) CONSUMPTTON pER UNtT OF pRODUCTTON

PRODUCT - TEA (per euintat)
Electr c ty (KWH /Qts.)
Coat(efls / eus )

Furrace Oi / H S.D (Ltr / et s.)

Reoistered Office :

10 Government P ace (East)

Kolkata - 700 069
Dated : 14th day ofAugust 2013

of energy:
CURRENTYEAR
31st March,2013

AnnualReport-2012-13 (q)' 11



Annexure to the Director,s Report
ANNEXURE'B'

Report on Corporate Governance
The Company pursuant to clause 49 of the Listrng
Aqreener_ 

^ 
lf <toc- e\c-ange.L,^isl tsreporio. uooe

ot uorporate Governan.F

I. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE

T'e Coroanv s pl osoo,ty o, Corpo,are
cio/e-1a^cp e.\ Sdges tFe ahdr-rre-- of I g4esi
ievelo' t.a-soa-enc! accoJ-raoi ity ano eqLJa, ry t.
tne 'J"ciolt,tg o. t1e Conoary a. d it. .ela-io, sl p
vr'ith emp oyee, shareholders cred tors, consurners
dealers. iender and ensLrring high degree of
regulatory comp iance

The Company is committed to fo ow the best
Co-oo a_e Go/e.ia. -e p,o-tces i- at lS pu.sL rs
a.d ,s corsta-tl\, sl,tJi-g lo beiter ll-en ald adopt
emergrng best practtces The Board understands
a_d ,especr< t: .to,lc a.y ,o e a, o respols.oitry' -o
is s^a-e'o,ders a to sl rles naro ro l eet .he r
expectations The Board also believes that best
board practices transparent disclos!res an.J
shareho der empowerment aTe necessarv ior

The name and category ofeach js given below:

b) Attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and the last Annual General Meeti {AGrvl

creating shareholder va ue Thus at Terai tea
Conpany L mited, we always encleavour to create
dr e-v.o.rienl of fa,-ess eq_tryar d t.a-sFd,erc/_'a-sacto-s Itl tne urder / .q oo,eur ve of
securing long term shareholder value creatton and
e'rhancenenr ,l/ria at -ne sa,re r r.e respecing
l1e -g^rs ot at stalenooe,s o. tne calpatJ afi
tfe soctety at iarqe

The Company will continue to focus tts resources
strengths and strategtes to achteve ts viston of
becom ng the mostadm red and trusted globalTea
producer. whi e upho dlng the core values of
e1'-eDrF reJrs- o o s..osure a-o l.arsoa.erc,
eo r L] re>Do ts'b tr\ S-sra ^abt, t, ,-o .lhtca
behavioLrrwhich are fundamental to t;e Terat family
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Composition ofcategory of Directors
The present Board of Directors ircludes a
f.ecrt ,e Dr.erto designa.eo as a \,4alagr. g
D rector and 5 Non-Executive DiTectors out ol
whtch four are lndependeni Directors

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS CATEGORY
[,4r A]it Kurnar Agarwala Execut ve Director and promoier
Mrs ShashikalaAgarwala Non-Execut ve, Non-lndependent Director and promoter
I\4r S taram Sharrna Non-Executive and lndependent Director
l\lr Rajendra Kanodra Non-Executive and lndependent D rector
l\,4r Kamai Ktshore Bihanl Non-E\ecultve and lndependenl D rector
[,4r Rajesh Singhania Non-E\ecuttve and lnclependent Director

NAIV]E OF THE DIRECTORS

rngs
NO, OF BOARD

MEETINGS HELD
NO, OF BOARD

MEETINGS ATTENNFD
ATTENDENCE OF

LASTAGM
I\lr Ajit KumarAgarwata 15 13
l\/ rs. Shash kalaAqaMala 15 12 Not Pres-.ni
l\,4r Sitaram Sharma 15 13 Present
[,4r Rajendra Kanodia 15 15 Present
Mr. Kama Kishore Brhan 15 15
Mr. Ralesh Singhan a 15 15

12 re)I TeraiTea Company Limited
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c) During the year under review, '15 (Fifreen) Board Meetings were held, The maximum time-gap between any
two meetings did not exceed tour months. The dates on which meetings were held are given below:

d) Numbe. of other Directorship and chairmanship/Membership oI Committee of each Director in other
Companies:

Apt\l 18 , 2412 Jure 13 2012 August 18,2012 November 14, 2012 February 13.2013

lMay 30 2012 Jr y 6,2012 August2T ,2412 December 3 2012 t\,4arch 11 2013

,lune I 2012 Auqust 14,2012 November2.2012 January 3, 2013 [,,larch 30 2013

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS

NO, OF DIRECTORSHIPS
IN OTHER GOIV]PANIES
(EXCLUDING PRIVATE/
FOREIGN GOIVPANIES)

NO. OF
CHAIRMANSHIP/

IVEMBERSHIP IN OTHER
BOARD COMMITTEES'

IVIr. Allt KumarAgarwa a 7 NIL

Ivlrs. Shash kala Agarwala 5 NL

Mr RaLendm Kanod a 7 1

Mr SiLaram Sharma 6 1

IVIr Kama Kishore B hani 2 1

I\,4r Ralesh S nghania 5 1

* Comm tee considered areAudit Committee. nveslors Grievance Comm tlee and Remuneration Committee

e) Code of Conduct : The Company's Code of
Conduct is applicable to all Directors and
Senior I\lanagement of the Company. Al the
Board membeTs and senior management of
the Company as on lvlarch 31.2013 have
affirmed thelr compliance with the Code of
Conduct. A declaration to th s effect duly
sgned by the lManaging Director (CEO) s

annexed as a part ofth s report

AUDIT COMMITTEE :

The Audit Commitiee assists the Board in its
respons b lity fo r ove rseeing the qualty and integrlty
of the accounting. a!diting and repoding practices
oi the Company and lts compliance with the egal
and regulatory req!irements. The Company has an
Aud t Comrn ttee in accordance wth Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement wth Stock Exchange read
wth SecUon 292A of the CompaniesAct, 1956 t
comprises of three Non-Executives lndependent
D rectors al of whom are f nancially iterateandthey
have accounting or related financla management
expertise Shri Kamal Kshore Bihani s the
Chairman of the Commiltee. The Cornpany
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee.

The terms of reference / respons bi ities of theAudrt
comTnittee are as under

a) The account ng and finan c al reporting process
of the Company. ncLrding the integrtyof the
audited financlalstatementsand other f nanc al

nformation provided by the Company to ts
stockholders the pub ic any Stock Exchange
and others.

The Companys compliance with ega and
regulatory requ rements

The Company's ndependent aud tors'
qua ifrcation and ndependence.

c)

b)

1)

2)

d) The audltofthe company's financ alstatements
and the performance ofthe Company's interna
audit function and is independent auditors

POWERS OF AUDIT COMIVIITTEE :

a) To invest gate any act v ty withrn its terms of

b) To seek informat on from any employee

c) To obta n outside legal oT other professional
advice

d) To secure attendance ofouts ders with relevant
expertise if t considers necessary

ROLE OF AUDIT COIVIIlIITTEE :

Reviewing Company's f nancial reporting process
and the disclosure of ts financa lnformation to
ensure that financial statement is correct sufficient
and cred b e.

Recornmending the appointment, re-appoiniment
and f required, the replacement or removal of the
StatutoryAudiiors and fixation of aLrdit fees.

Reviewing, with the r.anagement. the Annual
F nanca Statements beiore submisson tothe Board
for approval. wth particu ar reference io

AnnualReport-2012-13 '6" ,.



a) l,4atters required to be included ]n the Dlrectors'
Responsjb ty Staternent to be included in th-'
Board's report in terms of Clause (2AA) of Section
217 ofthe Compan es act, 1956.

Changes, fany in accounting po iciesand practices

and the reasons for the change.

I\4alor accounung entries nvolving estinates based
on exerc se ofjudgement by management

Significant adjustments made in the fnancla
statemenis aTising out ofaudlt findlng

Complrance with Lisiing and oiher Legal
requ rements related to financial staternents

Djsclosure of any related party transacUons

Qual ficaiions in draft Audit Report.

Reviewing, wlth the management, the Quarterly
Flnanc al Staiements before submisslon tothe Board

for approva

b)

c)

d)

e)

Remuneration of Director:

I\4anag ng Director and Executve Director

4)

5)

6)

7)

Dr Alit KumarAgarwala {24.00 Lacs p a

To discuss wth lnterna Aud tors any significant
findlngs and folow up thereon

Revewlrg, wih the management. performance of
statutory and nterna auditors, and adequacy oi
the lnternaLcontro systems including the reporting
structure coveTage ard frequency of nternalaudlt.

To ook lnio the reasons for substantial defau ts in

the payment to the depositors, debentlrre holders
shareholders (ln case of non-payrnent of declared
div dends) and cred tors if any.

Carrying out any other fu nction assetoutintheterms
of reference of theAudlt Comrnittee

During the year 4(four) meetings of the Aud t
Comm ttee were held on 30th May 2A12, 141h

August,2012, 14th November, 2012 and 13th
February20'13

SHAREHOLDERSY INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The SharehoLders / lnvestors' Gnevance Committee comprises offour Non_Executive lndependent Directors and

Company Secretary is the Complance offcer of the Company Board. comprised three Non-Executve D rectors

namely

The Composition of the Audit Committee and attendance oI members at its meeting are as follows:

NAMES OF THE

DIRECTORS

POSITION HELD CATEGORY NO, OF IVEETINGS

HELD ATTENDED

lvlr. K K Bihanl Chalrman lndependent Non-ExecuUve

[,4r. R Kanod a I\4ember lndependent Non-E (ecuiive 4 4

I\4r S R Sharma I\lember lndependent Non-Executive 4

N/lr R Singhania l\,4ember lndependent Non Executve

RE[,/]UNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Conrmlttee of the Board
comprses of fouT Noa-Executlve Dlrectors. and

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the
Re m unerat on Com miitee Terms of reference of ihe
commitiee nclude determ nation of the company s

poLlcy reqard in g Temunerailon packages.
commission payable to Directors/ Executive and
I\lanaging Director of the cornpany, thereof wth n

the imlt approved by the shareho ders from time to
tlme The commliiee had met once n the year
20'12-13 on 2nd day of November 20'12

Composition and Attendance oI the Directo.'s Remuneration Committee Meeting:

NAMES OF THE DIRECTORS POSITION HELD CATEGORY NO, OF MEETINGS HELD

Mr R Kanodia Chairn,an ndependeni Non-Executive

IVIr K K Bihan lvlember lndeDendent Non-Executive

I\4r S R Sharma Member lndependent, Non E) ecLrt ve

[/]r R Srnghania Independent, Non-Executive

!
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1. Mr

2 [rlr.

3. N,4r

4 I\,4r.

i)

Rajesh Singhania (Chairman)

Kama Kishore Bihan

S taram Sharma

Rajendra Kanodia

Meetings and Attendance during the year:

During the flnanc al year two meetlngs of the

Shareho ders' / lnvestors GTevance Comm ttee
(SIGC) were held on 30th day of IMay 2012 and

13th dayof February 2013 for the year ended Ma rch

31st 2013 n which allthe members were present

i)

iv)

Date and time ofAnnual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years are as Iollows :

Special Resolution passed in the last three AGIV:

a) ln theAGM on 29th Sep.2012 No Spec al R esolution was transacted

b) ln theAGM on 30th Sep 20'1'l:NoSpecalResolutionwastransacted

c) lntheAGMon2SthALrg.20l0 No Spec al Resolution was transacted

Al ihe resolution set out in the respective not ces were passed by the shareholders

No Resolution was put through postaL ba lot durlng the year 2012-13

NAMES OF THE DIRECTORS MEETING HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED

Mr. Rajendra Kanodia 2 2

Mr Ralesh Singhania 2 2

I\,1r Kama Kishore Blhanl 2 2

l\,4r. S taram Sharma 2 2

Compliance Officer:

[/lr Roshan Dave the Company Secretary s also

the Compliance Offrcer for complying with the

requirements of SEBI Regulations and the List ng

Agreements with the Stock Exchanges in lndia.

lnvestors' Grievance Redressal:

The Company attends the Comp a nis/Grievances

received from the lnvesiors/Stock Exchange/SEBI
(fany)and reviews the samewith the Reglstrarand
Transfer Agents Iv1/s I\,'laheshwari Datamat cs
Pvt Ltd on periodical basis. Ai the Complaints/
Grievances were resolved by STA immediately to

the sat sfact on of investors during the year under

Tev ew There were no outstanding complainis /
qLrer es as on I\,4arch 31st, 2013

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Share Transfer Committee was formed to

expedite the process of ShaTe Transfei and io

VII.

approve applications regard ng transfer/
transmission ofshares according to law. The Board

has delegated the powers of share transfer io a

corrihee conprrst_g o'Cl al' ra_ c -11 I\/a ragi_g

d rector and a DLrector The Share Transfer
Comm ttee attends to the share transferformalties
ai least once in the fortnight. AI the valld shar-'
transfe r ap plicauons received d!ring the year under

rev ew have been acted upon and there were no

shareiransfers pending as on March 31st 2013

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

i) Annual General Meeting :

Annua General l\,4eeting of the Company
during the precedlng 3 years were held at the

reg stered office oi the comPanY ai
1 O.Government P ace (East) Kolkata 700069.

LOCATION DATE TIME

10 Government Place (East) . Ko kata - 700 069 September29,2012 11 00A.1!1

10. Government P ace (East), Kolkata 700 069 Seplember 30 201'1 10:30A M

1O Government Place (East) .Kokata-700069 Auqust28.2010 10 30 A. Nr
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b)

d)

9)

h)

i)

t)

k)

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

None ofthe transactions with any ofthe re ated
parUes were in conf ict with the interests ofthe
Company ai arge The particulars of
transactions bet\reen the Company and its
rela.eo pa1,es as perAccoLnr r g Standa'd AS-
18) are disc osed n Notes ofAccounts (Note
No.38 (il)to accounts in theAnnual Report

The Company has duly conrp ed with the
requirements of the regulatory authorties on
Capital Market. No pena ties. strlctures have
been mposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority.
on any matterre ated to cap talmarkets, durrng
the ast three years

The SecretarialAudi under regulauon 55Aof
the SEBI (Depositories & Pari c pants)
Regulation 1996 and Share Transfer Audit
underClause 47 ofthe L st nq Aqreement are
carr ed out by a quallfied Practicing Company
Secretary The aud ted and cert fed reports are
sLrbmitted to the Stock Exchanges on quarterly

and b -annually basis

The Company folows Acco!nting Standards
issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of ndia and n the preparation of
financla statements the Company has not

adopted a treatment different from that
prescribed n an Account ng Standard

A l,4anagement D scuss on and Analysis
Report, given n a separate section forms pai(
ofthisAnnualReport and s attached herewth

There was no pecun ary re ationsh p or
transactions behveen the Cornpany and Non-
ExecuUve DirectoTs

The Board has rece ved disclos!res fron
sen or management personnel re ating to
mater a financ a and commercia transaction
in which they and/or thelr relatives have
persona nterest.

The Company has lully compLed with the
mandatory requlrements of the L sting
Agreementand with regard to Non-[,4andatory
requ renaents; the company has sei up a
re m L r n -aration co m m itiee

The Companydoes nothave a Wh stle Blower
Polcy at present.

-_e Corpal\ does r oL l.a\e rn/ sLbs di" r

Deta s of Directors seeklng appointmeat /
reappontmentatiheensulngAnnua GeneTal
I\leeting as requ red under Clause 49 of the
Listng Aqreemeni s annexed to the Notce
conven nq theAnnual Genera IVleeting.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) AnnualGeneralMeeting

b)

L

L

IX. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Ha f-year y / Quarterly repod norma ly pub|shed in

Newspapers
No as the results ofthe Cornpany are of
pub ished ln Newspapers

Anywebs te where drsp ayed Yes atwww.teraigroup,com

Wl'etler r also drsp ays of,cirl _.,/r's -eleases No

The presentations madeto nstitutona nvestors
or the ana ysis

No

Newspapers in which results are normaly
pub ished in

'The Echo of lndla" in Englsh and
''Arthik Lipi in Bengal.

Whether I\4anagement Discussion &

Analysis Repofi s a part ofAnnual Repo( or not

x.

Date September30,2013

Time 10.00 A. tll

l0 Go',ern'lent P ace LEasr, 'sr cloo' <o I'aIa-69

Financial Calendar ( Tentative and subject to change)

Particulars Date of Board meet:ng for approval

Annua Accounts for 2012-13 4th week of [/]av 2013

Results for F rst Ouarter 2nd week ofAuqust 2013

nancta Resu ts for Second Quarter 2nd week of November 2013

nancra Resu is for Third Ouarter 2nd week ofFebruary 2014

Result for the year ended Last Week of May, 2014
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c) Book Glosure
Books shall remain closed from September 26th 2013toSeptember3oth2013(bothdaysincusive)

Listing in Stock Exchanged)

The Company has padAnnua Listingfeesio Bombay Siock Excha,rge forihevear20l3_14

ii) Depositories:

(e) Demat lSlN Numbers :

(f)

h)

s) Share Transfer System The request for the transfer of shares held n physicalnrode should belodgedwth
the Company s Reg strar Share Transfer Agents Maheshwari Datamatcs Pvt Ltd The Board of Directors

has unan mously delegated the powers of share transfer, transmisslon, sub_divisior and consoldation to a

Share Transfer Commitlee in order to expedite transfer transmisslon. etc in the physlca form The Committee

meets once in every fortn ght for approving share transfer and for other related act v t es share iransfers are

reg siered and returned in normal course withLn an average period of 15 days, Lf the transfer documents are

found iechnica ly in order and complete in a I respects.

Market Price Data

Hlgh/low (based on ihe closing pr ces)during each month nthefinancalyear20l2-l3ontheBombayStock
Exchanqe

i) The shares ofthe company are Listed as per detaied belowl

The Stock Exchange Stock Code

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroza JeeteebhoyTower 25th FLoor DaLal Street [/umbai400001 530533

calcutta stock Exchange Association Limited
7, Lyons Range Kolkata-700001 30105

Ahemdabad Stock Exchange Limited
Karndhenu Complex. Ahmedabad-38001 5 60857

Jaipur Stock Exchange Limited
lndra Place J L N.I!4arg, Jaipur-302017 596

lSlN Numberfor NSDL/CDSL tNE 3S0D4011

National Securities Depository Ltd. Trade World 4th Floor
Kamala I\,4iLls CompoLrnd, Senapaii Bapat I\Iarg
I 

^M/Fr 
P.re Mrrmhei-400001

Central Depository (lndia) Ltd. Phlroza J eejeebhoy Towe r,

28th Floor, Dalal Street I\ILrmbai-400001

NSDL
CDSL

tstN INE 390D10'11
tstN tNE 390D1011

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents l\llaheshwa Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.
6 l\,4angoe Lane, 2nd F oor,
Surendra l\,4ohan Ghosh Saran
Ko kata - 700 001

Te e : (033) 2243 5029/580S
Fax \A33) 2248 4787
Emai : mdp @cal.vsnl net.in

Month BSE SENSEX BSE

CLOSE Hioh Price Close Pric€

Aptil 2412 17318 15 46 50 41 45 45.74

May 2412 16218 53 56 00 44.54 53 50

Jfie.2012 17429 9a 59.60 47 95

J Iv 2012 17236.18 59 90 36 30

Auqust,2012 17 429 56 44 20 33 05 38.80

Seotember 2012 1876274 4A 70 39 30

october.2012 18505 38 47.04 34 40 34 4A
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Month BSE SENSEX
CLOSE

BSE
High Price Close Price

November 2012 1933S S0 55 70 34 45 48.90

December 2012 19426 71 55 50 44 20 49.74

January 2013 1C894 98 55 70 44 45 46.90

February 2013 18861 54 47 65 3A 25 47 00

[/]arch, 2013 1883571 52 95 45 75 50 95

High & Low Markel Price:

Padiculars Terai Tea Co. Ltd. V/S BSE Sensex

TeraiTea Co. Ltd. Share Price BSE Sensex

On 1stAprl,2012 45.60 17 478.15

On 31st March 2013 50.95 14835.77

i) Performance ofthe Company in comparison to Sensex

s 20,000
E tg.ooo

! ,e.ooo
E 17.000
X ro,ooo

15,000

150

100

50

0

+ SENSEX + TERA TEACOMPANY LTD.

F.Y2012-13

i) Distribution of Shareholding As On 31st March, 2013

No. oI Shares Held No. o{ Holders % oI Holders No. of Shares % of Capital

Upto 500 1271 92.37 1 4A,263 2AA

501 1000 52 43 019 063

1001 2000 27 1S6 38 997 457

2001 3000 6 444 14 987 422

3001-4000 2 015 6 424 0.09

4001-5000 3 022 13.603 a.2a

5001-10000 3 o22 11,281 0.25

10001 and above 12 088 66,04 736 96.01

Total 1376 100 68,79,300 100

k) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March,2013
Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares Held % Holding

Promoter & Promoter Grouo 51 03 100 7418

Non-Promoters Holding :-
- F nanc als nsttutons NL NIL

- Bod es Corporate 14,94 686 21.73

- NRI/Fore gn Company NIL NIL

- Clearlng l\4enber 1 NIL

lndian Publlc 2 81,513 40s

Total 68,79,300 100

a.
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l) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity as on 31st March, 2013

Particulars ofShares Equity Shares of< 10 Each

Number % of Total

Dematerialized Form

A) NSDL 64 93,144

b) CDSL 215.194 313

Sub Total 67,08 338 97 52

Phys calForm 1,70 962 248

Total 68,79,300 't00.00

m) Outstanding GDRS / ADRS / Warrants or any Converiible lnstruments;

No cDRs /ADRs / Warranis or Convertible lnstruments are issued duI ng the yeat

n) Details of public funding obtained in last three years:

No capita has been raised by way of public funding in pasi three years

o) Plant Locations

Bagdogra Tea Estate P.O. Baqdogra Dist. Darjeellng West Bengal

Tera Tea Factory unit D.O. Khaloa' Drsr Da _eelng West Berga.

Karjeepara Tea Factory PO. Das Darqa. Dist Ja pa guri West Benga

Adhikar Tea Faciorv PO. Adh kari,Dist. Darjeel ng, West Bengal

Sevoke Tea Factorv P O Craroar Darga. D st Jfiar D r alpJr. West Be.1gal

p) Address for correspondence:

Any ass stance regarding share transfer and transmiss on changeofaddress,non-receiptofsharecertficates/
dup icate share certifcate, demat and other matters such as for redressa of alshare-related complaints and
grievances the Members are requested to wr te to or contact the Registrar & Share TransferAgents orthe lnvestors
/ Shareholder Grievance Depairment of the Company for a I ihe r queries or any other matter relating to their
sharehod ng rn the Companyatthe addresses given belowl

1. The Company's Registered Office: TERAITEACOMPANY LlMlTED
10 Government Place(East) lst Floor,
Ko kata- 700 069.
Tele : (033) 4021-4412(34 L nes),
Fax: (033) 2248-9182
Ema I :teraitea@gmail com,
Website: wl]wv teraigroup.com

2 Registrar and Share T.ansferAgent: |AHESHWARI DATA|ATICS PVI LTD
6 l\,{angoe Lane. 2nd F oor,
Sur-ondra IVlohan Ghosh Saran ,

Kolkata 700 001
Tele (033) 2243-5809r 2243-5029
Fax (433) 2248-4787
Emai : mdp @cal.vsnl net.in

For and on behalf of the Board of
Terai Tea Company Ltd.

Place : Ko kata Sd/-
Dated : 14th day ofAugust 2013 Ajit Kumar Agarwala

Chairman & Managing Director
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Auditors' Ceftificate on Compliance of Corporate Governance

as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

To
The Member of
TeraiTea Co. Ltd.
'10, Govt. Place (East)
Kolkata-700069

We have examined ihe coinpl ance of condit ons of Corporate Governance by Terai Tea Company Limited for th€

year ended on 31st I\4arch. 2013 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of ihe said Company w ih stocl'

exchanges

The CompLlance ofconditions ofCorporate Governance s the responsibilty ofthe lvlanagement Ourexamination has

been irnited to a rev ew ofthe procedures and Lmplementatlons thereoiadopted by ihe Company for ensur ng cornplanc€
wiih the con d itio n s of the cerUficate ofCorporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. ltis neither an aud t no

an expression of op nion on the financ al statements of the Company.

ln oLlr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanat ons given to Lrs the representatons
made by the Directors and the I\,4anagement we certify thatthe Company has comp ied wth the condiilons ofCorporak
Governance as si pu ated ln Clause49 ofthe above mentioned L stngAgreernent

As required by the Gutdance Note on certifcation of Corporate Governance issued by ihe lnstituie of Chariere(
Accountants oi lndia, we state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month as at 31s
March 2013 against the Company as per records naintained by the Shareholders/lnvestor Grievance Comrriitee.

We fudherstate that such compllance sneitheranassurancetothefutureviablityoftheCompanynoroftheefficenc)
or effectiveness with which the management has corducted the affa rs of the Company.

For P.K.Shah & Co
Chaftered Accauntant:

Firm Reqistration No. 308150E

sd/
(PK.Shah

Partne
[,4embership 1474(

Place : S liguri
Dated r 14th day ofAugust 2013

Declaration Regarding Code of Conduct:
To Whom lt May Concern

Thecompany has framed aspecific CodeofConductto be followed by the members ofthe Board ofDirectorsand th(
Senlor lManagemeni Personnelofthe company pursuant to Clause 49 of the ListingAgreement w th the Stock Exchangel
where the shares of the Company are I sted to further strengthen corporaie governance pTactrces n the company

All the members of the Board and Senlor IVlanagement Personnel of the Company have affirmed due obseTVance o

the said Code of Conduct in so far as it ls applicab e to them and there is no non comp iance thereof during the yea

ended on 31st l\larch, 2013. Based on the above it ls hereby dec ared the code has been complied with by all.

Place : Kolkaia
Dated : 14th day ofAugust 2013

For Terai Tea Company Ltd
sdi

Ajit KumarAgarwalr
Chairman & Managing Ditecto
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CEO/CFO Cefffication to the Board
(Under Clause 49(V) of Listing Agreement)

The Board of Directors
TeraiTea Co. Ltd.
'10, Government PIace (East)
Kolkata-700069

l, Aj t Ku rnar AgaMa a, N,4anaging Director & C. E O. Cedify that. -

a) We have rev ewed the financia statemenisandthecashflowsiatementfortheyear20l2-l3andthatto
the bestofour knowledge and belief:

a These statements do notcontain any mateTialy untrue staternent oromitany materialfactorcontain
staterrents that might be misleading,

a These statements iogether present a true and fa rview ofthe Company's affa rs and are in complance
with ex st ng account ng standards, appl cable aws and regulations,

b) To the best of our know edge and be ief, there are no transactions entered into by the Cornpany during the
year 2012-13 which are fraudu ent. i legal or vio ative of ihe Company's code of conduct;

c) Weacceptresponsibiltyforestab ishing and rnainta ning internalcontrols and thatwe have evaluatedthe
effectiveness of the inierna conirol systems of the Company and we have d sclosed to the aud tors and
the Audri Committee, deficencies in thedesign oroperation ofthe interna contro, ifany. oiwh ch we are
aware of and the steps we have taken or have proposed to take to rectify these deficlencies.

d) We have indicated to theAudtors and theAudlt Committee that -

a There has not been any signifcant changes n iniernalcontroloverthe financialreporting during the
year under rev ew;

a There has not been anysignificantchanges in accounting po icesdur ng the year requlr ng disclosure
in the notes to the financia statements; and

a There were no lnstances of significani fraud of wh ch we have become aware and the invo vement
therein, if any. of the management or an employee havlng a signifcant role n the Cornpany's
internalcontro system over the financial report ng

For Terai Tea Company Ltd.
sd/-

Place: Kolkata Ajit KumarAgarwala
Dated : 14th day ofAugust 2013 Managinq Director & CEO
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Annexure to the Director's Report
Annexure'C'

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

lndustry Structure and Development I

ndian total tea production n 2012 was reduced to 1112

(revised). m lion kg compared to 1116 (rev sed)* milion
kg in 2011 i,eadecreaseof4 million kg. This represents
around 40% of the total globa tea productlon. Your

Company has produced 51 78 Lacs kg of made iea n
_-e 

/ear 20'2- lI as aoa s.))0 lacs'g dL'lngorevo[s
fnanca year2011 12 Thedeclne n prodLlction sdue
to unfavoTable weather in Tera which resuited n crop
oss n that region The average price Tea izatlon was
h gher at < 103.70 per kg against the realzaton ci a
80 00 per kg prev ous year The Company endevours to
mprove the qua ty of made teas 10 improve sales
rea isat on per kg.Apartfrorn wages ncrease the higher
cost of power, fert lizers and other lnputs have a so
atfected the industry

n lndia. tea ls marketed through threedlfferent channels,
auction, prvate sa es and direct export As per the Tea

Board staustics. ndLa markets appTox rnately 50 60% of
the toia production through aucuon. ln lnd a, tea aucuon
is done throuqh 6 d fferent auction centers (Kolkata

S Ligur, Guwahat Cochn Coonoorand Coimbatore)with
Ko kata being the Largestarnongstthe 6

tconrpLrtation of alL ndiacrop has been revised byTea
Board of lnd a from the year 201'1 based on payn,ent of
cess on made tea by manLrfacturers Thls has resulted in
the revision of last year crop from 988 mi I on kg to 1116

milon kg

lndian Economy overview :

The lnd an economy s estimated io have grown at 5%
during the year under review. .e FinancialYear 2012_

13 as compared to 6 2% dur ng the prev ous year. The
WPI based inllaton remained high dur ng nrajor part of
the year. The lnf ation d d ease sharp y n the lastquarter
to end the year at 5 96% but t was mainly due to high

base effect RBI have started easing ts monetary policy

during the year and a so reduced key po icy rales viz.

the Cash Reserve Ratio and the Repo & Reverse Repo
ratas to i.1p ove rqu d t, a'd rlte e5. Iates Scela- o r
the eroror/ '_c'ease n t_e goverl-ent bo -ori1gs

Current account deficit and Fiscal def c t were h ghl ghts

of the economy durrng the year

''Growth n the Agricu tural and Al ied act v ties decllned
to 1 8 % in 2012 13 vs 3.6% recorded ln 2011-l2larqely
on account of a deficlent south-west monsoon"

zz '6' teraitea Company Limited

Segment Analysis and Review :

The Company is engaged ln ihe manufaciur ng of tea
and trad ng oilute

Risks & Concerns:

Tea lndustry s an agricu tural ndustryand ts pe.formance

is dependentonvagariesofnature The industry is high y

labourlntensiveand is subjectto stringent of abour aws.

Comparauvely h gh labour cost, high nfrastructure cost
aro rureasrge'e'g/ rroolher loLrtrocl el al ' -aor
prob em of tea industry Shortage of labo!r dur ng the
peak seasons s a so causes for conceTn.

Opportunities and Threats :

Your Company continues to produce we I made qua ity
teas consistenuy ndian tea exports were suscept b e to
the financia meltdown and io thatextent a slowdown was
inevitable Other threats are weather related which are
not ln contro of the lndustry Nonethe ess the adverse
effecl of draughts, floods and ha ls can be m n mized
through good and carefulagricu tural pract ces lnd a and
globa tea production is iike y to rema n siagnant to very
ins gnlficant growth n next few year dLle to negligible
add t on of Land under tea cu tivalion by organ zed sector.
Demand however, is expected to ncreases by 3 to 5%
perAnnum ihereby creating further shortages and ower
nventory leves ndlan exportsfel by 13 mlion kg rn

^0 2 or c to t'e srLgg r rg g ooal ecor or c scerario
conUnued h gh price and recent decllne in coffee pr ces.

Deprecatingcurrencyin ndadurng20l2 hadapositive
impact however any reversa of the trend may impact
export rea isat on

Outlook:

Normalweather condlt on across a I b ack tea produc ng

countrles as compared to dry weather ast year has
improved production during the f rst quarter of ca endar
year2013 Tea producton in these countr es is estirrated
to be hiqher by 45 mi I on kgs upto march Production n

lnd a dur ng the calendaryear20l3 is expecied to recover
to20ll level with the increase in consumpton everyyear
and the demand outstr pping s!pply, the out ook of tea
induslry ls robust and positive.

Financial Review & Analysis :

The Company's financ al position is strong enough whlch
has helped Company lo pass through n turbu entt mes

*,.,.- -,".,,



The deveopment work n garden is aways given top
priority forimprovement in quality as wellas quanUty. The
sLrrplus fund of the Company is dep oyed n such a way
that reasonable returns aTe derlved

lnternal ControlSystem and theirAdequacy :

The company has establshed suitable internal contro
system and has laid down policies, guide nes and
procedureswhich form partof ts inte rnal control system.
The company's interna controlsystems are periodically
tested and supp emented by an extensive programme
of inlerna audit by independent firms of Cha(ered
Accountants Audits are finallzed and conducted based
on internal risk assessTnent. Reports of the internal
auditor are reviewed by senior management and also
p aced before the audit committee wh ch prov des
reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding the
Company's assets. operattona efficiency and ensuring
compi ances with legal and regulatory framework

Material Development ln Human Resources And
lndustrialRelations:

Tea lndusky is high y abour iniens ve and human
resources oTiented. Human reso u rces are valuable assets

Ecsislelcd-Otf!.ec :

10 Government Place (East)

Kolkata-700069

Dated : 14th dayofAugust 2013

of your Company and attention is cont nuously pa d to
their development and wel being. ndustrial relations at
all the Estates factories rema n sat sfactory lnspite of
havng an empoyeestrength ofa most3OOO Empoyee-
Managemeni relations remained cordial throughout the
year. Continu ng educat on and training of employees at
al levels ofthe Company. particulary at its p antatiors,
contrbute to development of human resource Various
we fare measuTes cont nue to be carrred out partcularly
at the Companys Tea Estates During the year under
review, Welfare Week Prograrnmes have been carried
out at the Estate ofyour Company

Cautionary Statemeni:

The statements in the report of ihe Board of Directors
and the lvlanagement s D scuss on and Analysrs report
describing the companys projections estimates
expeciations or predict ons may be forward looking
statements wrthin the mean ng of applicable securities
laws and regulations Actual resu ts coutd dlffer matedaly
frorr those expressed or mp ied since the company's
operations are infuenced by many exierna factors
beyond the contro of the company Further tea industry
depends upon the vagaries of nature and any adverse
weather s tuat on can reverse the who e situat on

For and on behalf of the Board of
TeraiTea Company Ltd.

sd/-
Ajit KumarAgarwala

Chairman & Managing Dircctor
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Financial Highlights : Balance Sheet

(Forthe last five years)

2012-13 2411-12 2a1D-11 2009-r0 .2008 09

A. Assets Owned bythe ComPanY

(lncr caplta work in Prcgress) 64,66,48,346 61,43.56 971 a5 28 02 549 4912 2A 219 47 57 62771

Less:Accumu aied Deprec aiion 30,7 2,91 ,127 28 68 59 171 2A,72.95,458 24 66 2A 4,5 22.69,83 342

Net Block (A) 33,93,57,219 3214 97 AAA 28 55 07 091 25 05 91.664 24 B 79.429

2. lnvestments (atcost)

a Long Term Trade (Unquoted) Equily Shares 4,71..15,593 4 7214 593 4 60 40,593 4.72.40.593 4 72,40 593

b ln Subsld ary Co (Unquoted)

c ShorlTerm Non trade {Ouoted) 12,33,211 1233.211 32.17 184 39 576 39 576

d Olhers (Unquoled) 3,69,85,437 3 50 40 497 3 50 40.4S7 2,75.72.500 21512 5QQ

e ShortTem lOuoted) Equlty Shares 3,26,43,064 I li 6r 081

rotal (B) '11,79,77,305 11.68 75 384 I42 98 274 7 48 52 669 1 48 52 669

3. CurentAssels Loans A Advances (C) 35,05,93,151 43 63 22.934 40.16.70.400 42 15 2 0E2 36.16.79432

4. ['liscellaneous Expenditure
(1o ihe extent notwrtlen oif) 9 39 470 9 39 414 I39 474

TotalAssets (A+B+c) 80,79,27 .675 E8 06 96.118 77,24 5 235 74.98 95 885 68 52 5T 200

B- Dues to be Paid bythe ComPanY

25,41 ,51 ,283 19.07.87 461 12 6A a1 2 9 21 85 15 961 16 8. 20 146

2 10,17 .97 ,543 21.14.79 884 8 11 75 000 7 95 04 000

3 Cu ent Llabilites & Provis ons 5,99-13,773 6 40 39.136 4 4675744 7 10 49.989 6 60,90 902

Total Outside Liabilities 41,58,62,s99 49,27.49744 38 82 12 841 37 07 40 950 1t 40 r5 048

C, Net wonh o{the comPanY 39,20,65,076 38 79 86 374 aa 42 02 3AA 37 91 54 935 37 22 36152

D. Equily shareholder's Fund

6.90,29,250 6.90.29 250 6 90 29 250 6 90 29 250 6 90 07 796

b Reserues & Surp us 32,30,35,826 31 89 57,124 31 51 73.138 31.0r 25 685 30 32 28 356

39,20,55,076 38 79 86 374 l8 42 02 188 37 91 54.935 37 22.36 152

E Net' Profit as disclosed in the P/LA/C 75,84,809 60,61 998 30 76 956 72 45 796 56 06,348

F. Weighted No. of Equity Shares 69,02,925 69 02 925 69.02.925 69,02 925 69 !0 780

NetWodh per Equ ly Share oil l0/- each 57 56 55 54

Earn ngs per Equ(y Share oll10l each 0.63 059 045 105

za '6' teraiTea company Limited



Financial Highlights : profit & Loss A/c

(Forthe last five years)

. F gures for pevous years h.ve been regroupe.t / rearanged

. Presenlat on not si.cty in accordaf ce wnh rcv sed schedute Vr

2012-17 2011 12 2010-11 2009 10 2008-09

83,10,62,384 67 05.48 167 40 30.81 510 52 58 31 754 44 26,A1 562
35,16,335 24 66,151 54 98 e48 31 24 494 42A3.215

43,45,7A,719 67 30 t4 3.18 40 85 80 358 52 89,56,248 44 6A.A4 771

I lncrease/Decrease n stock \2,23,2O,352) 1,2402.187 3 99 09,856 \1 47.92 564) (3 42,30 9871
2 Raw [,,laleria s Co.s!med 30,93,10,741 22 58,10 959 11 52 26 3e9 34 71 08 920 29 44.37 3963 Personner Expenses 3,60,45,528 3 7t 52..107 2 98 89,689

5 97.46 198

3.28 60.886

8,54,06,594 6 a2 49 A42 5 T9 46 )015 Consumpton ofStores 6 Sprre parts 1,94,67,392 I 85,75 713 1.7642727 't 89 37 065 153,374536 Repa rs & [4a nrenance 1,57,9.i,550 91 34 222 17 66.347 52.4? 8J2 49 33 1087. Cost ofTraded Goods 30,31,88,800 2104.12516
I Sellnq 8 Pact ng E/penses 1,10,48,699 91 1e,J52 83 32.229 88 55,384
I AdminrstratveExpefses 1,74,86,108 1 38 01 7.10 'l 45,86 002 1 61 ,52 A34 15i 41972
r0 lnteesi lNel of subs dy) 3,15,91,870 4 34.68 688 3 2r 83 011 2 36,94 402

1,99,76,980 1.91 46,023 2 021A 935 1,91 45,896 2,16 36.930
82,69,93,910 66 69.52 319 4055,01401 5217 10 454 4412,78 429

Profil Beiore Taxation 75,84,809 60 61,999 30 78.957 1245,794 56 06,346
Provision For Income Tar-Current Tax 14,00,000 t7 00 000 10.70 000

4 50 000
Provis on For Defered Tax 8,00,000 € 50 000 7 50 000 7 50 000 7 00,000
lncoh€ Ta, for Ear er /e.rs 10,53,096 (5.36 r69) 1.36 127 3.91 678

43,X1,713 40 48,168 15 38 957 52 89.667 40 64 670
Baiance b/f From Earier years 11,26,46,25A t0 85 98 090 10 70 59,131 9.77 04.792
Ba ance Caried To Balance Sh.-..ar 11 ,69,77 ,971 11 26.46 258 l0 85 98 0q0 10 70,59129 1A 17,69 462
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lndependent Auditor's RePort

To
The Membels of
Terai Tea Gompany Limited
10, Govt. Place (East)
Kolkata - 700 069

Report on the Financial Statements

WehaveaudtedtheaccompanyingfnanciaStatementsofTERA|TEAcolVPANYLlMlTEDwhichcomprisethe
Balance sheet as at 31st Nlarch 2O13, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash Flow statement for the year

ended and a sumrnary of significani accounting poLlc es and other explanatoTy information

lVanagement's Responsibility forthe Financial Statements

I\,4anagementisresponsibleforthepreparationofthesef]nancialstaiemenisthatgiveatrueandfairViewofthe
f nan;lposltion, financlalperformance and cashflowsofthe company in accordancewth theAccoLtntng siandards

referred io in sub section (bc) of section 211 of the compan es Act, 1956 (,'the Act"). Th s responsib tity includes the

design. mplementation an; ma ntenance ofinierna controlre evanttothepreparation and pTesentatron ofthefinancial

stat;ents that glve a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or eTTor

Auditor's ResPonsibilitY

our responslbiity istoexpressan opinion onthesefinancla statementsbasedonouTaudt.weconductedourauditin
accordance with the siandards on Audlting issued by the lnst tute of chariered Accountants of lndia Those standards

iequ re ttrat we compty with ethicalrequ rements and plan and perform the audrtto obtain reasonable assurance aboul

whether the financial statements are iree irom mateT al m sstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ev dence about the amounis and disclosures in the f nancia

"tut"r"nt" 
rl" p|.o""durei se ecied depend on the audltofs ludgement, inc udlng the assessment of the r sks o'

material misstatement ofthe financ alstaiements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those r sk assessments, the

au d ito r considers interna control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentat on of the f nancra L statements

; order to design audit procedures that are appropriate ln the c rcurnstances A,,. audLt a so inclLrdes evaluaung th€

apfropriateness-of accounting po icies used and the reasonab eness ofthe accoLrnting est mates made by managernent

as we las eva uating the overal presentation ofthe f nancial staiemenis'

We beleve that the audit evidence we have obta ned s sLlfficent and appropriate to provide a bass foI oLlr aud

opln on

Opinion

ln ouropinion and tothe bestofour nformatlon and accord ng to the exp anations given to us, the fLnancialstaternentr

gl;the infornration required bytheAct in the manner so requlred and give a true and fair view n conformity wiih th(

accounting principles generally accepted in lndia

i inthecaseofiheBalancesheet ofthestateofaffairsoftheCompanyason3lst['4arch2013;

ii. rn the case of ihe Statement of Profii and Loss oftheproftfortheyearendedonthatdate;and

ili. in the case of the Cash F ow Staternent of the cash flows for the year ended on that date

L.--

ze ffi teraitea company Limited



lndependent Auditor's Report tcontu.r

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditols Report) Order, 2003 ("the ordel'), as amended ssued by the Central

covernnent of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of theAct, we give ln the Annexure a statement

on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by secUon 227(3) of theAct, we report that:

a we have o btalned all the information a n d exp la nations wh ich lo the best of ou r knowled g e and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinlon proper books of accouni as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

appears from ourexamination ofthose books and proper returns adequate forthe purposes of our audit

have been received from branches not visiied by usl;

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by ihis Report are

in agreement with the books ofaccount [and with the returns received from branches not vis]ted by usl;

d. inouropinon the BalanceSheet, Statement of Profit and Lossand Cash Flow Statement com ply wiih the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956; and

e on ihe basis of written representatlons Teceived from the directors as on 31st {\,4arch 2013, and taken on

record bythe Board ofDirectors none of the directors sdisqualifedason3lstMarch20'l3,frombeing
appo nted as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-sect on ('1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act
1956

Place : Hlll Cart Road, S liguri
Dated 29th Nlay,2013

For PK. Shah & Co.
Chaftered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 308150E
sd/-

P KShah
Parlner

Membership No. 14740
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I ndependent Auditor's Report 1.o*0.1

Annexure to the Auditors' Repoft

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Terai Tea Company Lim ted for the year ended 31st I\,4arcl^

2013. We report that:

ln respect of its Fixed Assets-

a The cornpany has mainta ned proper records showing fulpartcuars nclLrding quanttative deta ls anc
s tuation of f xed assets.

b Some ofthe fixed assets have been physicaly verified by the manageTnent in accordance wlth a program
of verification, wh ich in o u r op n ion provid es for p hys ica ve rification of al th e frxed assets at reasona bl€
intervals having regard to the s ze ofthe Companyand the nature of its assets Accord ng to the nformatior
and explanations given to us no maierial discrepancies have been noticed on such verificaUon

c No fixed assets were disposed off dur ng ihe year

i ln respect of its nventor esr

a. As explained to us, the stock offinished products and stores r.aterials ofthe Company have been physica l,
verified by the management during the year except for stock of tea ly ng at warehouse or cons gnrneni
agents which has been verified by sLrbsequent sa es.

b no!ropnion,theprocedureofphysica verificaton of stocks followed bythe management sreasonabe
and adequate n relation to the size of the company and the nature of its buslness

c. On the basis of our exam nat on of the nventory records. in ouropinion the Cornpany is maintalnine
proper records of inventory. The discrepanc es behr'r'een the physical stocks and the book stocks hav€
been dealt with propery and were not materia

ii ln respect of unsecured loans granted by the Company to the pairies covered n Register under Sect on 301 o,
the Companies Act.'1956 and according to the nformat on and explanat ons given to us:

a. The company has granted interest free unsecured loans / advances aga nst contracts to 11 part es. The
maximum amouni involved during the year and the year-end ouistanding balance of such oans/advances
aggregates to { 3'1 35 Crores and < Nilrespectvey.

b The company has taken nterest free unsecured oans / advances aga nst contracts from seven parties
The max mum amount iavo ved during the year and the year-end outstand ng ba ance of such loans,
advances aggregatesto I11 Crores and { 018 Crores respecUvely

c ln ouTopnion, consderingihe nature of iransactrons, the terrns and conditions on which such oans,
advances have been granted to and taken from such parUes are not prima fac e, prelud c alto the interesl
of the company

d ln respect of the oans/advances granted and taken as aforesa d there is no stipulation for repayment or
fixed intervals

v lnouropnionandinaccordancewiththeinformatonandexplanationgventous the nterna controlprocedures
for the purchase of inventory, raw mater als, siores and flxed asseis and for the sale of goods & sery ces are
adequate and cornrnensurate w th the size of the company and the nature of its business During the course o'
ouraudit we have notobserved any continu ng failure tocorrectmajorweakness nthe nternalcontro sysiem

v ln respect of contracts or arrangements entered in the Register maintained in pursuance of Section 301 of th€
Compan esAct 1956 and to the besl ofour knowledge & belefand according to nformation and exp anations
g ven to us

a The particulars of ihe contracis/ iransactions that need to be entered nto the reg ster maintalned under
secton 301 ofihe CompaniesAct 1956 have been so e.tered.

b In our opin on and having regards to our con'rments n paragraph ( v) above, the transact ons (elc ud ng
loans/advances reported in paragraph (li above)exceedingthevalueof{5lakhs n respect of any part}
during the period have been made at prices whlch are prrna face reasonabe havng regard to the
prevail ng market prices at the relevant time

vi ln our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the company has not accepted Depos ts frorn ih€
publ c during the year Therefore. the prov s ons oi clause 4(v ) of CARO are not appl cable to the Company

28 ql TeraiTea Company Limited



lndependent Auditor's Repott lconto l

vi n our opin on the cornpany has internal audit systera commensurate wtth the sjze and nature of its bus ness
vi We have broadly reviewed the cost records ma ntained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost

Accounting records) Rules,20l l prescrrbed by the Central Governmert !nder section 20g(i )(d) oi the Act and
are of the opin on that, prima facie the prescrbed accounts and records have been madeand maintaned
However we have not made a detailed examination of the records with a v ew to determ ne whether they are
accurate or cornplete.

ix Accord ng to the rnfornation and explanations gtven to us in respect of statuiory dues
a The Company has generally been regu ar n depositing undispLrted statutory dues nc uding provident

Fund lncomeTax. Sales Tax Serv ce Tax, Exc se Duty Cess and other mater a statutory due;applicable
to itwith ihe appropriate authorties during the year.

b According to the nforrration and exp anations grven to us no undisputecl amourts payable in respect of
lncorne Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax Custom Duty, Excise Duty Cess and other material
statutory dLres app icable to it were in arTears as at 3'lst March, 2013 for a period of more ihan s x months
frorn the date ihey became payab e.

c. Accord ng to the information and explanations g ven to us and in our opinion. there are no dues ofcustoms
duty. Wealth Tax, Service Tax Excise Duty, Cess ancl lncome Tax wh ch have not been deoos ted as on
31st [,4arch 2013 on account of any dispute exceptng the foilowing_
"Agricutura ncomeTax Labiity of< 30.52lakhs foracco!nting year,l995-96 and 1996-97which is pending
ai West BengalTax Tr bunal (ReferNote No 3S),,

x. The Company does not have any accumu ated osses and has not incured cash losses durrng the f nanc alyear
covered by our audit and the irnmed ately preceding f nancial year

x n our opin on and accord ng-to the ei(planations g ven to us the company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to Financ altnsttution, Bank or Debenture Holders.

xii The Company has not granted any oans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares
debentures and other securities

xili The Company is not a ch t fund or a nidhi/ rnutual benef t fund/soc eiy.
xrv The Com pany has not ente red n to transactions oftrad ng n shares securities debentures and other nvestrnents
xv The Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financia rnstitutions.
xvl To the best of our knowledge and belef and according to the informat on and exp anatrons g ven to Lrs, in our. opin on term loans avai ed by the Company were prima fac e, applied by the Company duri;g the yea;for the

D rposes [o. wF ch I te loa.s wete oo-a neo

I " 
i Accord ng to the nformat on and exp anations g ven to us and on an overal exarnination ofthe Balance Sheet of

I the company we are of the op nion that there are no funds raised on short{erm basis that have been used for
long{erm investrneni

xviri The Company has noi made any prelerential a lotment of shares to parties and compan es covered in the
registermarntained undersection 301 of theAct

xix. The Company has not rssued any debentures
xx. The Company has not raised any money by way of pubiic issue during the year
xxi Tothebestofourknowledgeandbeliefandaccordngtothe nformatjon and explanations given to us, no fraud

oa or by the company has been not ced or reported during the year

Place : Hil Cart Road, Siliguri
Dated 2gth [,4ay,2013

For PK. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accauntants

Firm Regtstration No. 308150E
sd/

p K Shah
Painer

l\4embership No. 14740
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BALANCE SHEET As at March 31st, 2013

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' Funds

(a) Capltal

(2)

(3)

ASSETS

(1) Non - CurrentAssets
(a) Fixed Assets

(b) Non - Current lnvestment

(c) Trade Receivab es

(d) Loans &Advances

(2) CurrentAssets

(a) lnventories

(b) Curreni lnvestments

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash and Cash equlvalent

(d) Short Term Loan and Advances

TOTAL

Note
No.

3

5

8

8

6

1

8

I
10

12

15

13

11

12

14

15

As at
31st March, 2013

6,90,29,250

32,30,35,826

6 90 29 250

39,20,65,076 31 A9 57 124 38,79,86,374

(Amount in <

As at
31st i\,4arch. 2012

8.33.89.301

6.29.52.363 48.3129.755

(b) Resetues and surplus

Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings

(b) Long Term Provlsions

(c) Defered Tax LiabiliUes

Current Liabilities
(a) ShoftTerm Bonowings

(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liab lities

(d) Short - Term Provisions

TOTAL

14,68,48,800

54,25,833

59,05,000

20,91,00,026

2,91,23,655

1,'11,50,708

83,08,577

15,81,79,633

25,76,82,966

28 42 40,514

45 45 301

51 05 000 29 38 90 811

14,44,30,098

2,84,71,617

1 88 11,097

71,06,121 19 88 18 933

88,06,96,11880,79,27.675

45,47 ,10,347

33,93,57,219

8,53,34,241

1,06,'10,654

1,94,08,273

9,16,49,677

3,26,43,064

6,77,53,027

83,20,506

1 5,24,51,014 35,32,'t7,2AA

80,79,27 ,67 5

6.7 4,41 .471

3,39 35 227

5,15,88,684

2,68.84 753

2 17,716.228 39,75.66,363

88 06 96 118

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these F nancial Statements

This s the Ba ance Sheet referred to in our repoat of even date

For and on behafofthe Board of DirectorsForand on behalf of
PKSHAH&CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 308,]50E
sd/-
P K Shah

l\,4embership No 14740

Place : HillCart Road, Silgur
Dated : N/lay 29th, 2013

sd/-
Ajit KumarAgarwala
Chatrnan & Managing Dlrector

sd/-
Shashikala Agarwala

sd/-
Roshan Dave

L
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Note
No.

16

16

17

For the Year Ended FOr rne Year Ended
31st March, 2012

83,37,08,693

26,46,309

83,.10,62,384

35,16,335

67,31 19,112

2511,A05

67 05 48 167

24,66,151

i

83,45,7 A,7 19 67.30,14.318

66 69 52 319

60,6'1.999

18 30,93,10,741

18 30,31,88,800

19 8,54,05,594

2A 1,94,67,392

21 (2,23,20.3521

22 3,60,45,52A

23 1,10,48,699

24 1,57,91,550

25 1,74,86,108

26 3,15,91,870

I 1,99,76,980

82,69,93,910

75,84,809

14,00,000

10,53,096

8,00,000 32,53,096

43,31,713

,'l Bas ( -9 0.G3
(2) Diuied 

0.63
The accompanying Notes form an integral pad of these Financial Statemenis

22,58,1A.959

21 A4 72,516

6 82 49 842

1.85.75 713

1 ,20 a2JB7

3 71 52 107

9'1.38 352

9134,222

1 38 A1 71A

4.34.68 688

1,91,46.A23

17 00 000

(5 36 169)

8.50,000 20,13,831

40 48 168

059
059

PR0FIT AND L0SS STATEMENT ror the year ended March 3,lsr, 2013 (Amount in <)

I Revenue from Operation (Gross)
Less- Excrse Duty

Net Revenue from Operations
ll Other income

lll Tota I Revenue (t+ )

lV Expenses

Cost of Matena Consumed

Cost ofTraded Goods

Cost of Power & Fue Consumed

Cost of Store Consumed

(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories
Personne Expenses

Selling Expenses

Repairs & [,4entenance

Admintstrative ancl other expenses

FinancialCosi

Deprec atton

TotalExpenses

V Profit Before Tax ( t- ru)
Vl Tax Expense:

(1) Curent Tax

(2) Tax expense for earlier years

(3) Deferred Tax

Vll Profit (Loss) for the period (V _ Vt)
Vlll Earnings per equity share:

This is ihe Statement of profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

lor and on behaif of
PKSHAH&CO,
Chaftered Accountanls
FRN 3O8150E
sd/-
P K Shah

l\,4embership No 14740
P ace Hil Cart Road S liquri
Daied:May 291h.20.t3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
Ajit KumarAgarwala Shashikala Agarwala
Chairnan & Managhg Directar Diectat

sd/-
Roshan Dave
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended March 31st, 2013

For the Year Ended
31st March, 20'13

A. EAS.TIETQUIEEQU-qPEBAIING.AqI]YLIEq
(l) Net Profit before Tax

(ll) Adjusted for
Depreciation

lnvestment lncome

.1,99,76,980

(9,23,013)

F nancial Expenses 3,'15,91,870 5,06,45,837

operatins profit before workins capital changes (l) + t ll)- 53130-648
(lll) chanses in

Tlade and other recelveables

Trades payable & Provisions

Loans &Advances

Pre operative Expenses

Cash senerated from operations (l)+ (ll )+ (lll)

NET CASH FRO[4 OPERATTNG ACTTVTTES (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assels

Capiial investment & Development subsidy

lnleresl & Dlvidend Rece ved

Profi on sa e of F xed Asseis

lncrease n nvestmenls

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

CASH FLOW FROIM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Recelpis from lssue of Shares

ncrease ln Borrow ngs

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

D. NET CHANGES lN cASH & cASH EQUIVALENTS 1A+B+c)=o
E, CASH & CASH EOUIVALENTS.OPENING BALANCE
F, CASH & CASH EOUIVALENTS.CLOSING BALANCE

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

We have exarnined ihe aitached Cash Flow statement of Terai Tea Company Linrited for lhe year ended 31si Nrlarch 2013 The
Staiement has been prepared by the Company in accordance wth ihe requirements of isting agreemenls and is based on and n

agreernent wilh the corresponding Profii and LossAccounl and Balance Sheet oflhe Company covered by o!r repod of 291h May
201310 the members ofthe Company

Forand on behafof
PKSHAH&CO.
Chaftered Accauntants
FRN 308150E
sd/-
P K Shah

I\lembersh p No 14740
Place : Hll Cart Road, Silgur
Dafed : Ivlay 29th, 2013

(Amount in < )

For the Year Ended
31si lMarch 2012

75,84,811

13,18,19,17 4)

60 6t 998

(1 ,7 4,84,708)

12,42,08,2061

22,'15,213

10,94,42,207

1 91,46,023
(5,14 084)

4.34.68,688

e 22,43 649)

1,40 75,381

19 30,917

{86.52.923)

(4,34 68,688)

(15 94,337)

16,15 54,422)

1 53,511

5,14.444

(3,30,26 255)

,0.r, * uu,

6 21,40,627

6€ 1,6r.615

(9.3913.082)

(3,15,91,870)

(20,85,998)

13,22,91 ,37 5)

2,01,965

9,23,013

.6,s2,777)

,r,,r,*.rq

6,99,64,506

12,41,95,154

(3,35,77,868)

9,45,17,286

(1-]950?!1
5.3312.392

q!9!! 0?5)

82 49,367

B,

c.

(8,12,62,35s)

(1 ,85.64,247 |
2,58,84,753

83,20,506

10 21,58 668
't 64,94 953

T 03,89,800
264,44.753

sd/-
Ajit KumarAgarwala
Chairman & l/lanasins Dnecbr

sdt
Shashikala Aga.wala

sdt
Roshan Dave

sz ffi terairea company Limited



Notes to Financial Statements
Note 1: Corporate information
-e'o T.a Co L-.reo ts a D-Dtc corpaly dor cirecl rr .no 

a
Acr 10)6 lts s ar.s a.e sted or Bo.roa! Stoc( f,uhange.
oi Tea kad nq n Merchandise

Note 2: Basis of preparation

The f na nc al statements of the companv have been prepared rn accordance with the Genera y Accepted AccountrngPnncipres n rnda lrndran GAAP) The company has prepared these frnancra .tui"n1"n,. to 
"orpy n aI materiarrespects w th theAccounting standards notified under the compan es (Accounrng siandarosl nu e". zoo'o 1". ur"nofJjand the Teevant prov sions ofthe Corroanies Act i956. Theflnancaf .tri"i"ri" f1*" been prepared on accrualbasis and urder the historicar cost convention er""pt ro, r"na a pr"niai""", r, r,rl"g 

"ao 
p,"at a mach neTy acqu redbefore lstAprir lg94thatarecarredatrevarLredamounts rr.," !""ornrn!'fori"i""'adopied n the preparation ofthe

:i;|::;10"tb1",#:"" "* 
consistent with those fottoweo in tire previouiv""r-"l""pirlr 

"r',"rg" 
r" the accounring por cy

Note 2.1 Summary of signilicantaccounting pollcies
a. lJse of Estimates

The preparaton ofthe financra staiements in conforrn ty w th rndian GAA, requ res the Management to makeestrmates and assumptons considered n the reported amounts or 
".."t" 

ril rabirities {incruding contingentLab lltles)and the reported ncome and expenses dur ng the year ir]" l,,lln'"!"i""nt o"r"ues thatthe est matesused in preparatron oi the financ el statements are pruclent ano reasonaoie"iuture results could differ due tothese est mates afd the differences between the ,cir" ,e"rlts 
"nJtf. J;tilraies are recogn sed in the per odsin which the results are known / materalze.

b. FixedAssets

Fixed assets, except and and planiation. building and plant & machinery acqu red before lstAprl, 1994 arecarredatcostessaccumurateddepreca,onand-mpaiment o"t". ,ii,iy-in-" 
"o.t 

oi fxed assets compr sespurchase price. nterest on borrow ngs attrrbutab e to acqu s[ o; oi qu, iiy,ngio"d 
""."ts 

up to the date theasset is ready for its intended use and other incrdentat e\penses rncriiJ ,lp io tr.,rt o"t"
subsequent expenditure re ated to an item of frxed asset is added to its book value onty f it increases the futurebenef rs'ron r-e e. sr rg asser oeyc ro ,ts pre, o .s4 asseoseo sta;;;.;;;p;;;r."-"u A I ortser e,pe. ses oneycr'tqtr,e0assets nc ud ng oav to_cla\ .eoa runo rrt reroncee.oe,oii_rea.ocosrofreoa(ngpa1:,a-e
charged to the staternent of profrt and loss for |re per oO Ouring wiricn suO,l*-p"n""" 

"r" n"uruac. Depreciation on Fjxed Assets

- Depreciatioll on fixed assets s pJov ded on written down value method at the rates ancl in the rnannerspecified in Schedule XtV to the Cornpanies Act 1956.

- Freeho d land and ptantation is not deprecrated.

- Depreciat on on the revalued portion s debited to Reva uat on Reserve
d. Investments

rnvesiments wh ch are read ry rearizab e and ntended to be he d for not more than one year from the date onwhich such investrnents are made, are crass fred as cunent investments. rii oti"r. ,nu""tr"nt" 
"re 

crass fied asnon_current investments currentrnvestments are stated atthe loweroic;ai"nii"].u"tu" Long-term investmentsor non- current investrrent are va ued at their acqurs tion cost r,ny o""tr'," in it," u"rre of the sard rnvestmentother than a temporary dectine rs recognised and 
"r,rrrs"d 

t" p,"rii 
";ii".';;"r.,e. Inventories

stockofstores. spares partard food stuffhave been laken on the basrs of physrcalver frcahon conductedby the management at the year end and valued al cost wh ch rs arr ved at'o; F iO ;ethod
Stock oftea produced is valued on s nce sold &/or estmated sales realizatton bas s

and incorporaied under the provisions of the Companres
The compary is engaged in the manufacturing and se linq
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

f. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent ihat it is probable that ihe econom c benefits wil flow to the company and

the revenue can be rellably measured

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale ofgoods ls recognized when alLthe s gn ficant rrsks and rewards ofownership ofthe goods

n"'u" f""n pr.""O to ti" buyer, usua-lly on delivery ofthe g;ods' The company co Iectsvalue added tax (VAT)on

["f,rfi"iiri" g"r".r"nt and therefore these aie not eionom c benefts flowing to the company Hence they

are excLuded from revenue.

lncome ftom Services

Reven!e from services is recognized when the service ls compleled as per terms of agr_oement'

Other lncome

lnterest income is Tecognized on a time proportion basis taking nto account the arnount outstandlng and the

;;; ;;;l;l;i;;"t1 ,;i" interest lncome ls nc uded under the h'ad "other ncome" n the statement of proflt and

lossaccountDVdendncomelsrecognzedwhenthecompanysrighttoreceivedividendisestabishedbythe
reportinq date

Retirement Benefits:

Reiirem e nt ben efits includ es provident fund gratuiiy fund and eave encash m e nt ben efits Companys contributions

to provldent FLrnd arecharged to StaterneniofPrtft& Loss on 
"""r,,a 

basrs ln respect of G rat! ity lablityhas

i-e"n proua"a foron tn" ba"sis of actuarialva uaiion and in respectof eave encashrnent beneflls ihe Company

iicounts for the same on cash basis and neiiher the tiabi ity is aciuar aly delerm ned at the end of account ng

period nor any provision made for accrued liab lity

Borrowing costs:

Borrowngcostsareexpensedintheaccountingperodinwhlchitsincurredexceptwhereihecostlsincurred
i,lrino tnJ construrction ofan assetthattakes a ;u bsta ntial period to gei ready for its iniendec use nwhich case

* ," .l"ii"r""a. g"ir"; no cosi s net ot sL,os ay on interest recetved/ receivab e as per the lncent ve scheme of

the Governmenl

Provision for current & deferred tax:

Taxexpensecomprisesofbothcurrenttaxanddeferredtax,Deferredtaxrefectstheeffe.toi|emporaryt]ming
affeiei 

""s 
l"t*"en ti," assets and liabi ities recognised for flnanclaL repo(ing purposes and the amoLlnts that

,i" iecognisea forcurr"nttax purposes As a mattjr ofprudence deferred tax assets are reccqnlsed and carrled

fo*"iJ in v to tf," 
"rt"nt. 

there is certalnty thai sLlfflcient iLrture taxable income wi I be ava lable agalnst which

such deferred iax assets can be reallsed

Subsidies and incentives:

Subsidies receivab e on account of capltal assets or of revenLle nature are accounted i'r on the basls of claims

madewth the concerned authorites

Gratuity:

DLscLosure as per actuarial report of ndependent actuary:

h.

j.

k.

Amount of obligat on as at the year end s determlned as under

Descriotion March 31.2013 March ll 2012

58,33,152 49 03 109
Present value of oblLgation at the beginnlng of the year

lnterest cost 5,32,093 4,29 450

CLrrrent service cost 3,17 ,416 3.47.754

a.nra loalnl/loss on obliqaton 12,'14,761J 4 7 5.932

(4,76,760) (2,83 094)

59,91,140 58 33 152
Present value of obl qat on as at the end of the year

aa 6' teraiTea company Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

Change in Plan Assets

Description March 31.2013 [4arch 3],2012
Plan assets at the beginning of the year

Expected Return

Contr bution 4,76,760 2 8i 494
Actua (garn)/ oss on ob igatron

Benef ts paid (4,76,7601 (2 83 094)
Presentva ue ofobligation as at the end ofthe year

Amount of the obtigation recognised in Balance Sheet :

Description March 31.2013 March 31 2A12
Present value of ob gatron as at the end of the year 59,91,140 58 33,152
Fa r value of plan assets at the end oi the year

Net assets/(liabil ty) recogn sed in the Batance Sheet (59,91,140) (58,33 152)

Amount of the Gratuity expenses recognised in the statement of profit and toss :

Description March 31,2013 Match 31 2a12
Current service cost 3,17,416 3 At 754
lnterest cost 5,32,093 4 29 454
Expected retLrrn on p an assets

Actuar al(gain)/ oss recognised dur ng the year \2,14,761) 4 75 932
Total 6,34,748 12.13137

Amount of the obligation recognised in Balance Sheet :

Description March 31.2012 [Iarch 31,2012
Drscount Rate per annum compound 8.25./" 8 00%
Rate of ncTease sa aries 5.00% 5 000/"

Rate of return on p an assets 0.00% 0 00%
Expected average remaining working lves of ernployees (years) 17.66% 16 85%

withdrawal rate varying between 8% per annum to 1% per annum depending on cruration and age of the employees

Annual Repod - 2012-r e ffi :S



Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

As at
31st NIarch,2013

3 : SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

1 00 00,000 Equityshares ofl10 each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up

68.79 300 (68,79,300) Equity shares of{ 10 each

Add. Forfeited Shares
(Pend ng re ssue of 94 500) Forfted Equ ty Shares on wh ch
< 2.50 per share is paid up)

6,90,29 250

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Share
As at

31st March,2013
As at

31st IVlarch, 2012

No of shares

At the Beg nning of the period

lssued dur ng the per od

O!tstand ng atthe end ofthe period

68,79,300

68,79,300

6,87,93,000

6,87,93,000

79 300

79 300

68

68

6.87 93 000

6 87,93 000

(Amount in < )

As at
3'1st l"4arch 2012

10,00,00,000

6,87,93,000

2,36,250

10 00 00 000

6 87 93 000

2 36 250

6,90,29,250

b. Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one c ass of equity shares hav ng a par value of I 10 per share Each ho clerofequity share
seniltedtoonevotepershare. The Company declares and pays dividendsln ndian rupees. The div dend proposed
by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the shareholders n the ensu ng Annua General lvleeiing. ln
theeventofiquidationoftheCompany,thehodersoftheequityshareswllbeentitledtoreceveremaningassets
ofthecompany,afterdstributonofal preferentiaiamounts Thedistrbutonwlbe nproportontothenumberof
equ ty shares held by the shareho ders

As perthe records ofthe company, including ts register of sh areh old ers/m em bers and otherdec arations received
frorr shareholders regarding beneflcal nterest the above shareholdng represents both egal and benefical
ownership of shares

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of { 10 each fully paid
As at

31st March, 2013 31st March 2012

No of shares % holding % hold ng

Ajit KumarAgarwa a

Shashlka aAgarwala

Abh jit Tea Company Pvt

GangotriVyapar Pvt Ltd

Flexco Supplers Pvt Ltd

AdbhutVyapar Pvi. Ltd.

Eversafe Distrlbuiors Pvt

tid

Lid

25,76,800

'18,98,800

470,000

346,200

348,600

347,500

347,500

37.46%

27.60%

6.83%

5.03%

5.07%

5.05%

5.05%

2 576 800

1 898 800

470 000

346 204

348 600

347 500

347 500

37]6%

27.64%

6.83%

5.03%

5 01%

s 05%

5 A5%

a.s-r,



Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

As at
31st March, 20'13

(Amount in < )

31st l\,4arch, 2012
4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

A, CAPITAL RESERVES

Capital subsidies
At the beg nn ng ofthe year

Add tion during the year

Tota at the end of the year

B, REVALUATION RESERVE

At the beginning of the year

Less- Deprec ation on reva uat on

Balance atthe end ofthe year

C. SHARE PREMIUM

D. SHARE FORFEITUTE AIVIOUNT

E. GENERAL RESERVE

Atthe beginning ofthe year

Addit on durrng the year

Totalat the end ofthe year

E SURPLUSAS PER PROFITAND LOSSACCOUNT

Balance broLtght from previous year

During the year

Balance atthe end ofthe year

Total (A+B+C+D+E+F)

5: LONG TERM BORROWjNGS

Term Loan from Banks Secured

Term Loan from Banks- Unsecured

Loan from Related Parties- Lrnsec!r-od

Loan frorn Others- unsecured

The above amouni includes

Secured Borrowings

[]nsecured Borowings

Term Loan relerred above to the extent of:

7,95,53,338

7,93,51,373

2,01,965

7,91,97,862

1,53 511

7 93 51 373

3 88.59.038

417 690

3,44,41,348

4,s4,976

3,79,86,372 3,84,41,348

7 64 56.000

I45 000

1,11 17 148

7,64,56,000

9,45,000

1 ,l',l ,17 .148

11,26,46,255

43,3'1,713

1,11,17 ,148 1,11.11 148

10 85,98,087

40 48 '168

11,26,46,255

31 89 57 r24

5 23 57 417

9,00.00 000

7 81 63,493

6,37 20 000

28.42,44,51A

523,57,417

,il9{1191
28,42 40 510

11,69,77,968

32,30,35,826

4,68,48,800

10,00,00,000

14,68,48,800

4,68,48,800

10,00,00,000

14,68,48,800

a' Tern Loan from centrar Bank of rnd a of r 441 rakh carres interest @ Base Rate prus 1.75% p a. The roan is
r-^payab e ln 20 equal quarterly nsta lments after 24 months moratori;m period The Loan is secured by bank scharge on rep antat on on areaS having tea bushes of age group 50 years and above in the Cornpany s eagaogra
Tea estate and a so guaranteed by ts Directors Sr Ajit Ku;arAganr/ala and Srnt ShashtkataAgarwa ab rermLoanfromAxisBankofa2T43rakh ssecuredagainsthypothecationofcarandcarriesrnterest@1043%
p a.on a monthly reducing basis ard s repayab e in 60 equal monthiy insta ments including nterest.c UnsecuredTerm Loan ofa 1000lakhsfrom otheraredueforrepaymentafter3yearsofdepostand carres no nterest

AnnualReport-2012-13 Lq) 37



Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

As at
31st lMarch,2013

6 : SHORT TERIVI BORROWINGS

Workjng Capital Loan from Banks_ Secured

Loan from Related Parties

Loans reoavable on demand

From Central Bank of lndia_ secured

From Bank of lndia'secured

Frorn Yes Bank- secured

lnterest free loan and advances from
re ated parties repayable on demand

7 : OTHER cURRENT LIABILITIES

A. Trade payables

B. Other Liabilities
Current [4atur]ties of Long Term Debt:

- Frorn Central Bank of lndia_ Term Loan lnterest

Fronr llCO Bank payable in next 1 year

Axis Bank nsiaLlments

Other L abilties

8: PROVISIONS

(Amount in <

3'lst [/]arch, 201i

a)

20,91,00,026

7,62,77,653

3,10,24,830

10,00,00,000

17,97,543

20,91,00,026

20 ,7 3,02,483

17.97,543

14 44,30,09

10 30.57,48

3.53,72 96

59 99.65

14,44,34,49

13 A4.34,44

59,99 65

20,73,02,483

't7,97,543

13 84,30 44,

59 99,65,

284716

1 88 11,0

472827

b)

The above amont includes

Secured Borrowings

unsecured Borrowings

WorkingCapiialloansareagainstbankSexcUsivelstchargebyHypoiheca|onofstocksofflnishedgoodsrawmateril
and sio;es and book debls and equiiab e moi(ase of tand and but d ng in Tea carden and Tea Factory and guaranteed by

oii""t"," si eli rrr* egaMa a and smt shashika a Agarwa a cc imit fronr Bank oi rndia carries nteresr @ BR pl

1 75% and irom Cenkal Bank of lndia carrjes lnlerest @ BR plus 1'75%

ShortfermLoanflomYesBankofll000lakhcarriesnierest@YeSBankbaseraiectlrlentyYesBankbaserateisl0.
p 
" r"a i"p"vrri" 

"n", 
g monlhs from the dale of disbiJrsemeni The loan s secured bv equitab e moitage of prope

lttrrlo a i,,1"'r- Dabgram, pargana_Batkuntap!r, Bhakitnagar, D stJatpaigurt n lhe nameoft\,4/sAbhiiitrea company 1

irJ L"r" 
" "r* 

g**;t"ei by tas Direcrors sr Ajrl KumarAsaMata and smr. shashikaka AsaMa a and fudhe. corporr

guaranlee of NI/s Abhiiit Tea Co (P) Ltd

Lnsecured Loan ofl17.98 takh irom re aled parlies and others are due for repayment wiihjn one year and carries no ntere

2,9't ,23 ,655

78,4,l,600

6,42,986

26,66,122

1 .34,247

1,6213161
6 71 155

17,85,934

1,11,50,708

4,02,7 4,363

Non-Current Curaent

31st March,13 31st N4arch 12 3'1st March, 13 31si lvlarch.

FoT Bonus

For lncome Tax

For Deferred Tax

For Gratuily

ar,ou,ooo

54,25,833

5'1 05 000

45.45,301

42,00,000

33,93,270

5,65,307

1,50,000

36750
19932

12.87,8
'l 500

1,13,30,833 96 50 301 83,08,577 71,06,1

L

se ffi teraiTea company Limited



Notes to Financial Statements {contd,)
9I FtXEp ASSETS AS ON 31.3.2013

(Amount in < )

NET BLOCK

107 28239 8,09,23,691 15,16,51,930 15,16,51930 707 20 239

143513365 1682,4S,482 9348i,449 53.43,923 983.11,377 5502644

02 t5081 1 02.35,033 5308,r00 246,343 55.54,4-48

2t 4q0 roJ 67,s0086 2316,51,539 101.29,0?0 15,91,10,114 7,25,41 475 759,20,459

I3702321 69 097 137,71,913 6052015 1l37,714 6332.189 76.50.306

617.660 6.17,660 24,214 1 49.359

1056170 2,41212 12.5t,182 s71921 90,377 9,62,298

I105557S 50,46511 I61.02,090 93 05 551 17.59,625 50,36912 50026

13,63645 149,33,227 125 74.267 11269,221 44.S5.115

134 X2715 1J4.12175 & 23l 9111,104 50,19,944

1782636 36,650 13.19,236 14.79,354 339,432 3.60.232

I1721365 18,03069 1,35,24 434 I17.21.365

1,07591 50,46379 4q:9 88

3 500r1 350,611 i,50,6r1 350.611

53 0t 07 07/ 6166.43,346 28 08 59 17l 2,0431.956 34,72.91,127 33.93,57219 24 X217 946

.AP TALWORK N PROGRESS 8,42,49 89,1 34249,394 84249894

6t 43 56 971 1t 65,41,269 6466,43,346 2068s9.1i1 2,0431,956 34,7291,127 33.93,57,219 32/497300

5518 02 5!9 615,99,262 6143,56,971 26 72 95.458 19,563713 ,9,68 59,171

10 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT
TRADE INVESTIT4ENSTS

Face
lnvestment in Associates (Unquoted) Value

10
'1000

10
r00
10

10
'10

10
lnvestment in Eouitv lnstruments (Quotedl
BalajHindustan Lld

Central Bank of lndia
tFCt Ltd.
Jayshree Tea & ndustr es Lld.
Rural E ectrflcatron Corporation Ltd.
lnvestment in Mutual Fund llJnouoled)
Re iance l\,4oney IVIanaqer Fund

East lndian Produce L1d.

Jaldacca Tea Plantations (P) Ltd
Terai Distileries Ltd

Abhijit Tea Co. (P) Ltd.
The KharibariTea Co. Ltd

Terai Dooars Tea Co (P) Ltd.
Sayedabad Tea Co Ltd.
Terai lspat & Tradinq Ltd.

As at
31st l\ilarch 31st March, 20122013

No. of
Shares/lj nit

No. of
Sharcs/unit

Cost
Pr ce

40,74 863
42.75 A1a

90 500

33,0 78 230
39 42 000
14 40 000

15 000
2 00 000

3,40,891

3,61,762
'1,06,128

1,61,230
2,63.200

50.00,000
25,00,000
40.00 000

25 00 000
1 17 00,000

Cost
Price

1

10

10

10

28,680
475

20,000
3,738

48,937
1,44,000

1,500
20,000

4,000
2,388
2,000
1,000
1,000

1,127.258
2,07,493.721
2,50,000.000

4,24,494.000
2,50,000.000

4,975.254

40,74,863
42,7 5,000

90,500
33,078,230
39,42,000
14,40,000

15,000
2,00,000

3,40,8S1

3.61,762
1,06,128
1,6.1,230

2,63,200

17,00,000
50,00,000
25,00,000

42,44,940
25,00,000

'1, t7,00,000

28.680
475

20,000

3 738
48,937

1.44,04C
1,500

20.000

4,000
2 388
2 000
1 000
1 000

2.07.493121
2,50,000 000
1.42.038 050

2 50 000 000
I975.254

Re iance Regular Savlnq Fund Equrly Plan
Koiak lndo World Fund - Drvldend
PrudentiallC Cl Liquid Plus Fund
lClCl lVultiy eld Fund
J M Agri & lnfra Fund crowth
DSP BR l\,4oney I\,4anager Fu nd

AnnualReport-2012-13 '6rl' .'



Notes to Financial Statements (contd,)

As at
31st March 2013

10 : TRADE INVESTMENSTS (Contd.)

HDFC Floating Rate lncome FLlnd

HSBC Liquid Pius Fund

Quoted Equity lnstruments

Bhe Ltd

Exlde lndustries Lid

H ndalco lndustries Ltd

lnfosys Techonologies Ltd.

Reliance lndustr es Ltd

State Bank of lndia

Tata N/lotors Ltd

Tata Steel Ltd

UCO Bank

tinlted Bank of lndia

B.

(Amount in < )

31st [,4arch 2012

No. ofshares
/Unils

No of Shares
/llnS

Cost CoSt
Price

1,53,884.520

3.51.539.270

Face Value No. of shares

'10

1

1

5

10

10

10

10

10

10

1,53,884.520 24,68 000

3.51 539 270 68,72A97
8 33 89 301

12 33 211

7 4A 628

8,21,56,090

24,68,000

6A,72,497
a,53,34,241

12,33,2',11

5,80,930

8,4.1,01,030

Aqqregate amount of qLloted investments

IVIarket va ue of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investmenis

11 : CURRENT INVESTMENT

current lnvestrnents (valued at lower of cost and fair value

runiess stated otheMise) 31st March 31st t\,4arch 2012

No of shares Cosi Pnce

2,500

5,000

28,500

900

9,500

2,500

4,600

5,000

50,000

2,500

5 000

28,500

900

I500
2,500

6 500

4,600

5 000

50,000

9,32.189

1 47 812

5311.212

25 52 502

84,6A,787

57.94 664

12 92 163

26.27 ,443

4 49 145

56,34,710

3 38 10 227

1 25 000

3,39,35,221

3.38,10.227

27 .5 16 424

1 25 000

2013

Cost price

9,32,189

7,47,812

53,11,212

25,52,502

84,68,787

57,94,664

26,27,043

4,49,145

56,34,710

Unquoted lnvestments

Techno Stee lnd a (P) Ltd 50

Total Current lnvestment

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Market Value of Quoted investments

Aggregate a ro-nt of L_ql oleo rvest*erts

12: TRADE RECEIVABLES

LJnsecured Cons dered good unless stated otherwise

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months frorn

date they are due for PaYment

Unseclrred Considered good

Other Receivables

llnsecured Considered Good

Total (A+B)

3,25,18,064

2,500 1,2s,000

3,26,43,064

3,25,18,064

2,33,60,550

1,25,000

2.500

Non-Current Current
As at

31-03-2013 31 03-2012 31-03-2013 31-A3 2012

49,11,249

56,99,405

35,90,885

56 99 406

60,14,829

6,17,38,198

3 a4 3418?

1 31.53.901

1,06,10,654 92 9A 291 6,77,53,027 5,15 88 68/
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

13: INVENTORIES

Raw {\laterials (At iower of cost and net realtsabie value)
Power & Fue s (At lowerofcost and net realisable value)

Finished Goods(Ai est mated sales rea izaiion value)

Stores (At ower of cost and nei realisable value)

14 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equiva ents

Cash in hand (as certified by the Management)

Bank Balanceswrth Bank in CurrentAccounts

Other Bank Balances

n Frxed Deposit

Accrued lnterest on F xed Deposit

15 : LOANS ANO ADVANCES

A. CapitalAdvances

Unsecured considered good

B. Security Deposit

Secured considered good

C. Loans And Advances to Related
Parties [note no 37(b)]

tlnsecured cons dered good

D. Advances Recoverabte ln Cash or Kil]d
Unsecured considered good

Sub Total(A+B+C+D) = E

F. Other Loans and Advances

Advance lncome TaX (net ol prov sion iof taratr.nl

Prepaid Expenses

Loans to Company

Baiances With Statutory/
GovernmentAuthorities

OtherAdvances

Sub Totat (F)

Total(E+F)

As at
31st [4arch 2013

(Amount in {)
As at

31st to4arch 201,

,1,46,719

33,24,363

8,01,72,200

80,06,395

,J6,4r.677

15,57,495

1,24,139

62,34,776

4,04,096

5 40 7A2

1A,52,247

5,78,51,848

79 96 674

6,rut14V

31,33,27S

85 363

2.25,68,911

10 97 194

83,20,506 2 68 84 753

Non-Current

31sl [4arch,2013 31si Uarch 2012 31st March.2013 3lsl March 2012

6,53,150 e.14 219

6A,AA.742

9,39 470

43,750

95,000

1,80,20,082

'l 60 000

19 68,65,179

1 ,74,94 325
6,53,150 77.54 431 1,81,58,832 21.41,19,5A4

1.33,67,700

53,87,423

3 78 00,000

1,33,67,700

40 30 232

32,96,688

12,93,46,994

5,2 t,681

15,26,819

22.63186

4,43,578

I89 360
1,87,55,123 5 51 97 930 13,46,92JA2 35.96 724
1,94,08,273 6,29,52,363 15,28,51,O14 21,77,16,228
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

16 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products

Flnished Goods (Tea Sale)

Traded Goods (Jute Sale)

Other Sales

Sale oI Services

AgricLrltural Operations Conkact Work

Gross OPerating Revenue

Less r Exclse Duty

17 : OTHER INCOME

lnterest lncome

Dividend lncome

Profit On Sale of Current lnvestments

Other Non OPerating lncome

18 r coST oF I4ATERIAL CONSUMED

PLrrchases

Add Opening Stock

Less C os ng Siock

Purchases of Traded Goods

19 : COST OF POWER & FUEL CONSUMED

Purchases

Add:Openinq Stock

Less:Closing Stock

20: COST OF STORE CONSUMED

Purchases

Add Opening Stock

Lessr Closing Stock

21 : {INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

lnventories atthe end ofthe Year

lnventories at the Beqinning of The year

(Amount in { )

For the year ended
31st March, 2013 31st N,4arch 2012

52,49,38,328

30,38,10,2'15

49,60,150

83,37,08,693

26,46,309

83,10,62,384

3,01,579

5,13,315

6,21,434

20,80,007

35,16,335

30,90,08,477

4,48,983

(1,46,719)

42.22 25.464

22.09,48 108

2,99.46 000

67 ,31 19,172

25,71,005

67 .05 48,167

30,93,'10,741

30,31,88,800

61 ,24.99 ,54',1

a,76,78,710

10,52,247

(33,24,363)

8,54,06,594

1,90,98,425

7,89,208

|\4,20,2411
't,94,67,392

(8,01,72,200)

5,78,51,848

\2,23,20 ,3521

1 ,85 461

3 26,234

3.28 623

16.25,837

24,66,151

22 47.12,072

15,41 871

(4 48 983

n.5axur::l!
21A4,72,511

43,62 ,83 ,471

6 74,05 701

'18 96 381

\10,52 247

6.A2,49,84

1 82,2A 81

11 44.14

(7,89,20t

1,A5.7 5,71

(5 78,51,841

698540:
1 .2a,02 lt

+z -6' teraitea company Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

22: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary Wages Bonus Gratuity Etc

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund

Gratuity

Staff & Labour Welfare Expenses

23: SELLING EXPENSES

Fre ght & Transport Charges

Warehousing Expenses

Brokerage & Other Sa e Charges

24 : REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Repalrs to :-
Plant & IVach nery

Buiding & Roads

Others

25 : ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Rates & Taxes

lnsurance

Travelling Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Legal & Professronal Charges

Directors Remuneration

Advertisement

Aud tors Remuneration

- AsAudit Fees

- As TaxAudit Fees

- For Other l\,4aiters

Subscrlption & Donation

Keymaf lnsurance

Office Rent

E ectr cty Charges

t\4isc Expenses

26 : FINANCIAL COST

Bank Charges

Bank lnterest

Other lnterest

(Amount in t )

For the year ended
3'l st March 2013 31st I\,4arch 2012

3,23,63,252

15,25,458

6,34,7 4A

'15,22,070

3,60,45,52A

3,38,561

41,64,373

65,4s,765

ilo/8$s,

3,30 79,013

13,36 211

12,13137

15.23,746

3,71.52,147

166.683

4A,77 075

48,94 594

91 38 352

33,04,472

9,81,586

1,15,05,492
'1,57,91,550

1,88,680

9,53,228

61,.18,206

3,65,592

6,32,450

24,00,000

4,13,952

90,000

25,000

53,540

4,32,191

16,10,625

9,22,500

8,95,239

23,84,905

1,74,A6,t08

13,34,912

3.02.35,251

21,707

31 ,21 076

6,74,9A2

53,38,244

91 ,34,222

4,02,887

6.83,195

43 61 ,927

3 40 850

7 .52 622

14.28,000

3 22,740

90,000

25.000

48 390

3,61 146

21,47.544

I00,000
4 21 183

15,16,27A

138,01,710

11,04 560

4 21,17,599

2,46,529
3, t5,91,870 4,34 68 688
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27. Earnings and expenditure in Foreign Exchange- (< Lakhs)

i Earnings Sales (FOB Va ue) : t Nil ({NlL)
i Expend ture (Others) : t 15.47 (< 6 43)

Capital and Olher Commitments

At31stMarch2013 thecompanyhascommtmentof<1.84 akh re ating to purchase of P ant & l/lach nery

a) Quantitativelnformation:
Manufactured ltem: Tea

24.

29.

Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)

. Sales quanlty ncldes comp mentary sampe tea waste and shonage etc

b) Quantitative lnformation of Other ltems: (< n Lakhs )

30. Consumption of Raw lllaterials:

31. Consumpiion ofStores & Spares

CURRENTYEAR

TOTAL TOTAL

Nit

194.57

Nit

100%

N

'lB5 76

Nil

OUANTITY (KGS,) VALUE (I LAKHS)

CURRENT PREVIOUS PREVIOUS

a) irom own Tea Garden

b) Purchase iron oltsde
21,34,965

2,10,21,990

19.91 798

2 AA 92 a2T

241 126

3093.11

NA

1896 49

32. The Company has cap talized dur ng the year the fo lowing expenses of revenue nature to the cost of f xed assets.
Consequently expenses disc osed under the respect ve Notes are net of amounts capitalzed by the company

31st Ma.ch. 2013 31st [,,larch 2012

Financ a Cost

Legalexpenses

33. Government Grants received by the company are as g ven below

Governmeni Grants

<1,07,691

{ 32,90 632

< 4,23 414

OPENING STOCK PRODUCiON SALES CLOSING STOCK

Qry KGS, { LAKHS KGS, KGS. ILAKHS Qry KGS, { LAKHS

TEA
5,S7,896

(6 82.712)

574.52

(698 54)

51,77,45X

(52.01 667)

50,61,577

(52 86 483)

5249.38

6220 4A)

7,13,772

(5 97 896)

401.72

(578 s2)

ITEMS
CURRENTYEAR SALES PREVIOUSYEAR SALES

I6ding Nlercandise (Sales)

Tladins Mercandise (Purchase)

12511.00 3038,10

3031,89

10369.20

10369.20

lrlT

r\47

224918

214A73

44 f6[ TeraiTea ComDanv Limited
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D-uring the year the foltowinq transactiohrofbusines;-(tln laihsl- ""_"-"'""swerecarriedoutwithrelatedpartiesinthe ordinarycourse

Notes to Financial Statemehts (conta.) le,ountinrl
34. No provisron for c!ntingent rrabrrity rn respect of the foirowing has been made in the accounts-O--sra.clt.tg Balr GLorartees a_o-nti19 -o I gS.S, f"kh",a _O 

O, L"^n.,
" '".:.;".; ,:,"li.i:;,"T:;i:1"':li:i::lr''i ".o.; 

;; ; 
";u;. 

#,.'io,,l'oo-.. * a, ,1cone ra. , ab ,i,y

-^ ".0 
.r.i '. o"-o'l i'"fuJJlI,".,ri',, ji r?i,,led, 

ror aqsresa Ie I )0 52 ar -s Ho^e/er tora der aro ,.' orqp-r.;
Jo. rre(o.roa-racoLreaOvwavoJor,"nail?r.a,nro--r.leaLsrareasagol,tgconcernFor.so,^.erS.Dr.erora

\air Browirc- ,s,,qp s-.csi.€,6'. a1o Dla." pL rea .roJSt e( .e ii" .ri-i",-, _.g pa.r, and tle Deeo olconveyance was dLrty executed and regrstered',n rn" nur" oi rr," iorllni,ri"e .",0 o""o oi conveyance was.ar(e reo r!.oworoe-orlod'sD.reber,lee,r"u.",t"ru.o"noin"_or,,lion..l,a"rgr"unerr.o.pL.cFaseoJ
the said Tea Estate subsrsts and rs sublect matt", oi, 

"p""iii" 
pulii Jn"J ll,,.o"no,nn ,r"ro," Hon,ble Kotkata

X,8i :::t:,T:."""Jj:3";1,',';"'"","""::'",. "ttr,." "''o 
i"" !.,"i" 

""1 
r-,i"". 

"'"""ordinsrv 
f ot acco!nted ior the

._ ".r",",up.u."it.,"";,;;; 
j,:"""ijl:i;J:xilT::,lJl:#:,;::1":::;"iil.tli;;:;;;,: i:l:

37. The Company acquired certain tnteresj tn arlot ofland 
" 

r""g"i*",J, 
"rn.i reg stration tn the name ofthero_ oa' 'haqrorbe6.oo e Arl.,pe-seso. t,grtrol . ..soe.to.m:sr:o,"nOr 

"aoaro.,uau.oee_edcosto.a1o.3S AsoerAc'o(1rr'gSiJ_da.o'8rssl,ed-oyr,,er-sal-reo.Cr^d,","oolo,nrr,rorlroarneclsc.os,reof

ll, "::::"-:.^*fr. rr:]" rared parues as derr;ed ," ,r," a."or"tris,"",,"filiJ nli"" * 
"*,

Name of Related party
Nature of Relationship

1

2

3

5

6
7

8

I
10

11

12

13
14

East lnd an proctuce Lrmrt-Ei
Ja dacca Tea plantations private Limitecj
Abhl t Tea Company private Limtted
Terai lnfrastructures Limited
Terai lspat & Trading Lirnited
TerarDooars Tea Company private Ltmrted
SaVedabad Tea Conrpany Lrm ted
Terai Jute pr vate Limtied
Terai Financiat Services (p) Limited
The Khanban Tea Company L mited
Terat Over seas Lrrnlte.l
Terai D st llefles Limtied
Terai Resorts & Country Club pvt. Linrited
Arnit Parrdhan (p) L mited

Associates Compantes

Kanchanvrew Tea Estata
Alit KurnarAgarwata & Others (HUF) Enterprises of Key lt/anagernent persons
SriAllt Kum-rngarwata
Sml ShashrkalaAqarwa a Key [lanagerneni persons
Am tAgalwala FoLrndaiion

Public Chariiable Trust

Nature ofTransaction
Relatives of K.tV.p31.03.f3 31 A3 12 31.03.13 31 .A3 12 31.03.13Sales Services a otrer incomi

Purchase orgoods & seryices
[ranageriat remuneration

Advances recoverect
Year End Batances ofAdvances
llax. Amt. O/S During the year

31 A3 125.96
36.12

1,564.38
3.393.39

0.95
2,902.93

316 54
72_24

2.4A4.67
1 44A 12
2 533 20

,*u
27 62
27 62

-o
231.89

231 Al
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Notes to Financial Statemehts (conto.) (Amountinr)

39. Earnings per share -

PARTICULARS

NU[/tERATOR - Net Profl as d sclosed in Profit & Loss Account

DENOMINATOR " Weighted average no. of Equity Shares

BASIC EARNING PER SHARE (Face value of Rs 10/- each)

43.32

59,02,925

063

44.44

69,02.925

059

40. Directors Remunemtion

ThencreaselniheremunerationoftheManaqngDlrectorfrom{15lacsto25acsw.e.f1stAprl,2012.Thesad
ncreased in the I\Ianaging Director remuneraton s authorized by the Board of D rectors in the r meet ng held on

2nd day of November 2012 and appropriate form with N,4CA-21 have been filed However the ncrease n

remuneration is subject to approval of the shareholder n the ensuring Annual GeneraL I\/eet ng.

42 The company has not received informaiion from vendors regarding the r status underthe Micro. Srna land IVIediun

Enterprises DevelopmentAci 2006 and hence disclosures relating to anoLrnts unpaid as at the year end togethe
wlth interest pald / payable Lrnder thisAct have not been given.

This is ihe ba ance sheekeiered to n ou eport ofeven date
Forand on behaliof For and on behal oflhe Board ofD rectors
P KSHAH & CO,
Ch anered A%auntants
FRN 3O8150E
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/
P K shah Ajit KumarAgaMala ShashikalaAgaMala Roshan Dave
Panner Channan & lr'lanaging Dnecb Dnecta. Canpany Secretary
Membership No 14740
P ace H il Can Road, Si guri
Dated : May 29th, 2013

41. Seoment-Wise Perlormance

2012-13 2012-13 2411 12 2012-13 2A11'12

Externa Revenues (Net oI Exc se) s,298_99 4 521 -1 3034 10 2 249 4A 8,337.09 6 731 19

lnter seqment Fevenue

5,298,99 4 521 71 3038.10 2 249 4a 8,337.09 6 7l t. t9

350.40 365 89 6.21 104 76 356 61 470 65

Un-a o.ab e ncome nei ofun-a ocab e eip
1315 02t

35 15 24 66

75 35 60 62

32.53 2a 14

43.32 4a 4A

8,079.28 I806 q6 8,079.28 8 806 96

3 806 96 8,079.28 I806 96

322 91 322.91

204.32 204.32 195 64

+s ffi Teraitea company Limited



^ffi' TERAI
Registered

TEA COMPANY LIMITED
Offic.e ;.10, Government place (East)

Kolkata- 70O069

PROXY

rnembers ofTERAt TEA COMpANy LTMITED hereby appoint

1."H":,:,T:;,^i,rli";?r,#fffli#:_". on ny . o ,r ber_ar or r.re aorh An..ra cele.ar r\,4eei.ns of rne
lEast)Kotkei,Tnn^Ao^"^,^-,-,...^.^,"?tobehetda-tRegsteredOffceoftheCom;anya 0.covt.pece(East) Kotkata 70006s on r.,ronday rhe 3orh sep".b;l;,;"i;;:;;; r*il:L",IXffili;F,",Xil"ii

Signed at thls . day of.. ,,,' .,,' ., ,,, .,, 2013

Note lfan-enbe,isJraoletoahe-otner,teefl-g.nenaysg-ir sroritaroseroittotreCor oarv dr,ls Req:sre.eo Office so as to r;ach t" C"a 
"".y."i,".*"".)g"""i_ .before the time of holding meetrng.

^ffi-

,ll/€efl--greh ar Reg ste-ed off,ce of tneCol oa,y
rne JUrn September 2013, at 1O 0OA [.4

TERAI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office : {0, covernment place (East)

Kolkata- 700069

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Name of the shareholder/ proxy.

I hereby record my presence at the 40th Annua General
at 10 Govt. place (East), Kotkata 700 069 on ft4onday

S]GNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER/ PROXY-
.Strike 

out whlchever ts not appltcable

Note : Piease handover the slip at the entrance ot the meetinq venue



(< ln Lakhs)

SALES
10,000.00

8,000.00

6,000.00

4,000.00

2,000.00

0.00

2013 2012 2A11 2010 2009

EBIDTA
800.00

600.00

400.00

200.00

0.00

PBI PAT
80.00

60.00

40.00

20.00

2A1A 2009

RESERVE & SURPLUS
3,300.00

3,200.00

3.100.00

3,000.00

2,900.00

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
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